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2017 18

2017 18
LLC
Neuberger Berman Investment
Advisers LLC

)
2003 26

()

() 2021
2021 480,000 5,308
110.58 480,000 110.58
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,058
)
2003 26
2009 27

)
2021

EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40

Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)
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TOPIX
MSCI-KOKUSAI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
MSCI
MSCI Inc.
MSCI Inc.
NOMURA-BPI
FTSE
FTSE Fixed IncomeLLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC
FTSE Fixed Income LLC
JP GBI-EM
JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
JP. Morgan SecuritiesLLC
3.3
0.015
15,000
0.65 0.30 0.35
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2021
13,250,554.77 22.74
12,196,014.36 20.93
9,993,100.42 17.15
6,087,945.17 10.45
4,671,249.75 8.02
4,324,906.76 7.42
4,031,621.80 6.92
1,542,178.74 2.65
1,168,593.94 2.01
637,643.37 1.09
252,268.92 0.43
58,156,078.00 99.82
104,658.11 0.18
58,260,736.11
100.00
6,442,472,199
2021
NGG FINANCE V/R 2073
5.625 3,424,000 | 158.19| 5,416,501.54|154.03| 5,274,138.98 .05
06/18/73/GBP/ 18
BAYER AG V/R 2075
2.375 3,845,000 110.83| 4,261,231.83|120.27| 4,624,288.19 .94
04/02/75/EUR/
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2170
3.875 2,900,000 | 116.77| 3,386,426.96| 131.03| 3,799,948.27 .52
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 14
VODAFONE GRO V/R 2079
3.1 3,000,000 116.99| 3,509,576.72|123.48| 3,704,455.10 .36
01/03/79/EUR/
ENBRIDGE INC V/R 2077
5.5 3,309,000| 101.65| 3,363,466.09|106.40| 3,520,776.00 .04
07/15/77 15
ELECTRICITE DE 2169
6 2,200,000 | 148.79| 3,273,447.19|154.31| 3,394,775.12 .83
V/R /PERP//GBP/ 29
VEOLIA ENVIRON 2170
2.5 2,700,000 117.59| 3,175,064.95|119.18| 3,217,939.63 .52
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 20
TENNET HOLDING 2169
2.374 2,450,000 114.20| 2,797,956.23|122.92| 3,011,504.09 17
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 10 22
BP CAPITAL MAR 2170
3.625 2,276,000 | 112.65| 2,563,867.89| 128.95| 2,934,794.52 .04
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 22
ENEL SPA V/R 2169
10 2.5 1,867,000 110.33| 2,059,768.01|124.12| 2,317,322.04 .98
/PERP//EUR/ 11 24
VEOLIA ENVIRON 2170
11 2.25 1,400,000 | 123.74| 1,732,308.82|121.55| 1,701,766.49 .92
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 20
VOLKSWAGEN INT 2169
12 2.7 1,300,000 | 119.00| 1,547,004.52|122.00| 1,585,952.92 .72
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 12 14
CMS ENERGY CORP 2050
13 3.75 1,405,000 100.37| 1,410,145.69|101.73| 1,429,306.50 .45
V/R 12/01/50 12
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SUEZ V/R 2170

14 2.875 1,000,000 | 126.60 | 1,265,994.69|124.86| 1,248,574.81 2.14
/PERP//EUR/ 19
CMS ENERGY CORP 2050

15 4.75 1,115,000 100.00| 1,115,000.00| 111.44| 1,242,528.13 2.13
V/R 06/01/50
ENI SPA V/R 2170

16 2 951,000 | 120.32| 1,144,243.19|118.44| 1,126,327.02 1.93
/PERP//EUR/ 11
BERTELSMANN ~ V/R 2075

17 3 800,000 | 114.07 912,596.83 | 122.87 982,964.99 1.69
04/23/75/EUR/ 23
TOTALENERGIES 2170

18 1.625 800,000 | 120.75 965,999.99 | 118.59 948,685.84 1.63
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 25
BHP BILLITON V/R 2077

19 6.5 608,000 | 146.33 889,679.57 | 147.52 896,908.57 1.54
10/22/77/GBP/ 10 22
ENI SPA V/R 2169

20 3.375 700,000 | 117.91 825,404.99 | 125.89 881,257.70 1.51
/PERP//EUR/ 10 13
SES SA V/R 2169

21 2.875 692,000 | 122.77 849,595.12| 119.43 826,467.72 1.42
/PERP//EUR/ 27
SSE PLC V/R 2077

22 4.75 725,000 99.93 724,494.91 103.42 749,816.75 1.29
09/16/77 16
ENTERPRISE 2078

23 | PRODUC V/R 5.375 15 721,000 | 100.00 721,000.00 | 103.21 744,110.32 1.28
02/15/78
AUSNET SERVI V/R 2081

24 1.625 535,000 | 120.62 645,343.74] 120.61 645,270.17 1.11
03/11/81/EUR/ 11
SOUTHERN CO V/R 2051

25 4 600,000 | 100.00 600,000.00 | 105.75 634,500.00 1.09
01/15/51 15
SOUTHERN CO V/R 2051

26 3.75 616,000 | 101.45 624,920.80 | 100.78 620,804.80 1.07
09/15/51 15
BRITISH TELE V/R 2080

27 1.874 509,000 | 109.15 555,598.94 | 115.39 587,349.42 1.01
08/18/80/EUR/ 18
KONINKLIJKA FR 2169

28 2.85 479,000 | 121.64 582,648.121120.73 578,305.01 0.99
V/R /PERP//EUR/ 12 10
VOLVO TREASU V/R 2078

29 4.85 409,000 | 115.23 471,283.69| 127.19 520,198.00 0.89
03/10/78/EUR/ 10
ARKEMA V/R 2169

30 2.75 400,000 | 112.60 450,399.36 | 125.16 500,658.51 0.86
/PERP//EUR/ 17
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2020 2021
2018 28 62,318,176.00 6,891,143,902 10.44 1,154
2019 28 47,211,429.00 5,220,639,819 10.02 1,108
2020 29 29,189,271.00 3,227,749,587 10.61 1,173
2021 28 25,004,453.00 2,764,992,413 10.62 1,174
2020 28,182,730.42 3,116,446,330 10.41 1,151
28,396,549.00 3,140,090,388 10.51 1,162
27,310,956.54 3,020,045,574 10.41 1,151
10 26,810,492.56 2,964,704,267 10.36 1,146
11 27,865,036.39 3,081,315,724 10.69 1,182
12 27,448,485.75 3,035,253,554 10.74 1,188
2021 25,692,993.90 2,841,131,265 10.70 1,183
25,004,453.00 2,764,992,413 10.62 1,174
22,920,874.73 2,534,590,328 10.66 1,179
22,963,579.80 2,539,312,654 10.69 1,182
22,039,896.07 2,437,171,707 10.63 1,175
21,121,802.44 2,335,648,914 10.68 1,181

36/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018 28 9,393,871,563 10,313
2019 28 7,174,360,266 9,675
2020 29 5,208,004,048 10,031
2021 28 4,213,414,408 9,957
2020 4,833,727,630 9,759
4,591,039,565 9,855

4,462,661,940 9,761

10 4,398,545,750 9,719

11 4,499,357,824 10,030

12 4,466,388,172 10,070

2021 4,237,289,143 10,028
4,213,414,408 9,957

4,201,737,392 9,994

4,186,757,749 10,023

4,128,649,996 9,965

4,122,050,248 10,012
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0.27 30 225
0.36 40 300
0.36 40 300
0.36 40 300
2021 0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
0.03 3 25
1.47 163 1,225

7.10 5.38

-0.57 -3.28

9.48 6.78

3.49 2.25

100x
10
10,000
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6,550,758 581,344 5,969,414
(6,550,758) (581,344) (5.,969,414)
436,038 1,691,451 4,714,001
(436,038) (1,691,451) (4,714,001)
224,384 2,186,392 2,751,993
(224,384) (2,186,392) (2,751,993)
201,749 599,424 2,354,318
(201,749) (599, 424) (2,354,318)
1,018,701 107,794 910,907
(1,018,701) (107,794) (910,907)
101,095 270,488 741,514
(101,095) (270, 488) (741,514)
32,615 254,925 519,204
(32,615) (254,925) (519,204)
10,045 106,107 423,142
(10,045) (106,107) (423,142)
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2021 28
NB
2021 28
60,240,818 64,226,401 7,102,155
1,360,467 150,440
2,568,501 2,568,625 284,039
3,190,412 352,796
15,284 1,690
829,595 91,737
301,148 33,301
72,491,932 8,016,158
43,697 4,832
6,341,010 701,189
68,377 7,561
43,426 4,802
30,243 3,344
28,603 3,163
23,750 2,626
5,260 582
1,784 197
1,348,429 149,109
5,177 572
7,939,756 877,978
64,552,176 7,138,180
63,925,861 7,068,922
(4,590,024) (507,565)
2,272,701 251,315
2,943,638 325,507
64,552,176 7,138,180
4,213,414,408
423,142 9,957
25,004,453
2,354,318 10.62 1,174
110.58
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NB
2021 28
2,006,435 221,872
2,006,435 221,872
459,129 50,770
459,128 50,770
178,974 19,791
35,318 3,905
33,258 3,678
10,970 1,213
10,332 1,143
1,761 195
24,994 2,764
1,213,864 134,229
792,571 87,643
1,200,555 132,757
(1,967,589) (217,576)
(767,034) (84,819)
5,402,522 597,411
(2,862,393) (316,523)
2,540,129 280,887
1,773,095 196,069
2,565,666 283,711
110.58
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NB
2021 28
792,571 87,643
(767,034) (84,819)
2,540,129 280,887
2,565,666 283,711
(1,343,063) (148,516)
(952,129) (105,286)
(2,295,192) (253,802)
10,045 942,032 104,170
201,749 2,095,841 231,758
106,107 (9,918,060) (1,096,739)
599,424 (6,309,995) (697,759)
(13,190, 182) (1,458,570)
(12,919,708) (1,428,661)
77,471,884 8,566,841
64,552,176 7,138,180
110.58
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NB
2021 28
2,565,666 283,711
(44,528, 255) (4,923,934)
66,428,332 7,345,645
559,368 61,855
(1,200,555) (132,757)
(5,402,522) (597,411)
2,894,122 320,032
402,927 44,556
102 11
(24,707) (2,732)
10,970 1,213
1,661 184
(11,258) (1,245)
(19,038) (2,105)
(1,464) (162)
830 92
21,676,179 2,396,952
3,044,579 336,670
(18,692,323) (2,066,997)
(2,295,192) (253,802)
(17,942,936) (1,984,130)
3,733,243 412,822
195,849 21,657
3,929,092 434,479
110.58
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NB
2021 28
2021 28 2021 28
10,031 10.61 1,173
® 109 0.12 13
117 0.25 28
226 0.37 41
(300) (0.36) (40)
9,957 10.62 1,174
2.37 3.63
4,213,414 25,004 2,764,942
® 1.71 1.71
® 1.11 1.12
@
@
110.58
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NB
2021 28
(@D)
99.5
2.3
2.3
BHP Billiton Finance Ltd.
989,000 6.50% due 10/22/77 2.3 1,493,753
1,493,753
1,493,753
0.4
0.4
Elia System Operator S.A.
100,000 2.75% due 09/05/23(%) 0.2 127,206
Solvay S.A.
100,000 4.25% due 12/04/23® 0.2 129,884
257,090
257,090
6.0
6.0
Enbridge, Inc.
3,309,000 5.50% due 07/15/77 5.2 3,368,198
360,000 6.00% due 01/15/77 0.6 379,800
Transcanada Trust
100,000 5.88% due 08/15/76 0.2 110,417
3,858,415
3,858,415
0.9
0.9
Orsted AS®
450,000 2.25% due 11/24/17 0.9 570,789
570,789
570,789
16.4
16.4
Arkema S_A.
400,000 2.75% due 06/17/24 0.8 507,386
Danone S.A.
100,000 1.75% due 03/27/23(M 0.2 123,808
Electricite de France S.A.
400,000 3.38% due 06/15/30(D 0.8 502,183
2,200,000 6.00% due 01/29/26() 5.3 3,437,230
Engie S.A.
100,000 1.38% due 01/16/23%) 0.2 122,671
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(@D)
Orange S.A.
155,000 5.25% due 02/07/24) 0.3 211,423
TOTAL SE
800,000 1.63% due 10/25/27(M 1.5 970,263
100,000 2.71% due 05/05/23(%) 0.2 125,919
Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield SE
1,200,000 2.13% due 07/25/23® 2.1 1,382,769
Veolia Environnement S.A.
2,700,000 2.50% due 01/20/29(1 5.0 3,225,479
10,609,131
10,609,131
10.6
10.6
Bayer AG
3,845,000 2.38% due 04/02/75 7.3 4,741,173
300,000 2.38% due 11/12/79 0.6 366,149
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
800,000 3.00% due 04/23/75 1.5 997,468
EnBW Energie Baden-Wuerttemberg AG
100,000 3.63% due 04/02/76 0.2 121,696
Evonik Industries AG
522,000 2.13% due 07/07/77 1.0 646,783
6,873,269
6,873,269
5.0
5.0
Enel SpA
1,867,000 2.50% due 08/24/23 3.6 2,354,092
ENI SpA
700,000 3.38% due 07/13/29(M 1.4 887,565
3,241,657
3,241,657
1.3
1.3
Aroundtown S.A.
300,000 1.63% due 04/16/26(M 0.5 346,479
Grand City Properties S.A.
400,000 1.50% due 03/11/26) 0.8 473,989
820,468
820,468
15.8
15.8
ELM BV for Firmenich International S.A.
315,000 3.75% due 09/03/25(M 0.6 409,569
Iberdrola International BV
400,000 2.25% due 01/28/29(D 0.8 497,051
TenneT Holding BV
2,450,000 2.37% due 07/22/25(® 4.8 3,084,287
100,000 3.00% due 03/01/24) 0.2 127,601
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Q)
Volkswagen International Finance NV
1,900,000 2.70% due 12/14/22 3.6 2,355,227
2,900,000 3.88% due 06/14/27(M 5.8 3,722,126
10,195,861
10,195,861
10.5
10.5
Fastighets AB Balder
5,200,000 2.87% due 06/02/81 9.7 6,224,153
Volvo Treasury AB
409,000 4.85% due 03/10/78 0.8 536,138
6,760,291
6,760,291
24.1
24.1
BP Capital Markets PLC
2,276,000 3.63% due 03/22/29() 4.6 2,951,157
British Telecommunications PLC
709,000 1.87% due 08/18/80 1.3 848,990
Centrica PLC
200,000 3.00% due 04/10/76 0.4 243,342
NGG Finance PLC
3,741,000 5.63% due 06/18/73 9.1 5,955,996
SSE PLC
1,725,000 4.75% due 09/16/77 2.8 1,788,083
Vodafone Group PLC
3,000,000 3.10% due 01/03/79 5.9 3,782,504
15,570,072
15,570,072
6.2
6.2
CMS Energy Corp.
1,405,000 3.75% due 12/01/50 2.2 1,408,933
1,115,000 4.75% due 06/01/50 1.9 1,225,765
Enterprise Products Operating LLC
721,000 5.38% due 02/15/78 1.1 716,279
Southern Co.
600,000 4.00% due 01/15/51 1.0 624,628
3,975,605
3,975,605
60,240,818 64,226,401
60,240,818 99.5 64,226,401
0.5 325,775
100.0 64,552,176
(7,138,179,622 )
@
(@) 3017 11 24
110.58
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Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Citibank NA
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation

116,526
58,162

148,283

115,636

167,955

1,650,345

2,386,033

51,770

1,343,600

22,055

108,839
2,459

48,128,646

3,778,354

10,990,018

194,261

2021
2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

20
20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20
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(104, 385)
(70,613)

(179,951)

(139,748)

(204,725)

(1,995,212)

(2,911,931)

(62,889)

(1,638,955)

(26,680)

(149,874)
(255,324)

(39,460,435)

(3,085,469)

(8,031,547)

(161,305)

22 (4,394) (4,372)
68 68

249 249

777 777
(619) (619)

10,357 10,357
(12,322)  (12,322)

24 24
(6,156) (6,156)

122 122
2,334 2,334
61 61
174,646 174,646
28,761 28,761
(241,894)  (241,894)

(1,764) (1,764)

217,421  (267,149)  (49,728)
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State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
UBS AG London
Branch
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation

13,236,234

17,704,308

10,778,604

14,141,759

918,529

9,784,737

876,795

4,497,400,982

9,784,737

187,951
158,790
183,028
169,151

106,839

155,728

115,524

135,732

135,297

100,475

43,972

1,850,565

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021
2021
2021
2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20
20
20
20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20
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(126,116)

(170,677)
(102,788)

(134,648)

(8,648)

(94,077)

(8.467)

(43,307, 286)

(92,887)

(19,474, 461)
(16,905,332)
(18,989,149)
(17,617,400)

(11,053,341)

(16,148,399)

(11,961,284)

(14,077,629)

(14,140, 390)

(10,552, 655)

(4,655,500)

(191,461,346)

(1,803) (1,803)

(4,400) (4,400)

(1,557) (1,557)

(1,830) (1,830)

1) 1)

(2.180) (2,180)

(232) (232)

(1,068,267) (1,068,267)

(990) (990)

5,049 5,049
18 18
4,684 4,684
3,691 3,691
3,028 3,028
4,064 4,064
3,185 3,185
3,517 3,517
2,492 2,492
1,366 1,366
248 248
52,385 52,385
83,727 (1,081,280)  (997,553)
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NB
2021 28
2016 12 16
2012 10 15

2009 a CIMA

2017 22

LLC
2020 12 CIBC
UFJ UFJ PB

FASB ASC

946

GAAP
GAAP
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2021 28

2021 28
64,226,401 64,226,401
301,148 301,148
64,527,549 64,527,549
2021 28
1,348,429 1,348,429
1,348,429 1,348,429
FASB ASC 740

50
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86 6,624,322 66 4,148,959
38
10,466,797 75 2,088,296
)
)
)
¢) > )
FX
2020 29 48,282,613 29,189,271 77,471,884
942,032 2,095,841 3,037,873
(9,918,060)  (6,309,995)  (16,228,055)
(1,343,063) (952,129)  (2,295,192)
1,584,201 981,465 2,565,666
2021 28 39,547,723 25,004,453 64,552,176
2020 29 519,204 2,751,993 3,271,197
10,045 201,749 211,794
(106,107) (599,424) (705,531)
2021 28 423,142 2,354,318 2,777,460
2021 28 93.46 10.62
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10.00
10,000
10

2021 28
2021 28 43,697

10
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2021 28 MNA
MNA
(€)]

Citibank NA 5,132 (4,394) 738
Goldman Sachs 8,461 8,461
Royal Bank of Canada 1,026 1,026

State Street Bank And Trust Co. 216,122 (216,122)

Westpac Banking Corporation 70,407 (70,407)
301,148 (290,923) 10,225

2021 28 MNA
MNA
(©)

Citibank NA 4,394 (4,394)
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 261,038 (216,122) 44,916
UBS AG London Branch 1,557 1,557
Westpac Banking Corporation 1,081,440 (70,407) 1,011,033
1,348,429 (290,923) 1,057,506

@
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2021 28
301,148 (1,348,429)
2021 28
(2,060,663) (2,894,122)
0.65
0.30 0.35
2021 28
459,128 2021 28 30,243
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
0.015
15,000 2021
28 10,970 2021 28 23,750
0.05
2021 28 35,318
2021 28 5,260
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2021 28
COVID-19
CoVID-19
12
13
FASB 2018 28 ASU 2018-13 820
ASU 2018-13 ASU 2018-13
ASC 820 an
entity shall disclose at a minimum at a minimum
ASU 2018-13
ASC 820
2019 12 15
14
2021
2021 2021 493,066
1,543,442 381,798
2021 2021 212,588
4,236,706 258,321
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 28, 2021

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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it

Errvpstmgrknin secuntion, o velue oot of LD B0 T40,518)

Cathy

Fargign currendy, 8 valos |eo of LED 2,568,501 )

Regavasle lor nvestments skl

Aecarable for Lrits daud

Ertmres! recawable

Lbreraali rod sppereciwtion on fo resnd forsgn comenay eschange mortracks
Tiotal sosets

Lighiigie:

Pyl i F of Linets e ad

ﬂl-fﬂq-inr irve@manty purchaspd

Ancrued ditritor's fees

Apirudd custodien Bhd pob-admini grasr g eei
Arergad moanagen et fees

gor il profess ol fees

Agrruaid § el Toad

Ancryd sgent company's fees
Acoroad reg Eration fees

Uewalrad digracistion on lor ed lardign o rency o chinge ool rem
Acirgd othar supenses

Tiotml bl ities

Met Anpets Attribitabils v Unithaldsr

anadyrin of Net Saiets:
Pged v capital
el ot wd di stributars insscess of net irvestm et incom &

Acogmadabed net res| ned gairs on nvestevend s aned Ponsign currenicy bransacticrd ard Forsard

fonsign cumency sachange coniracts

et arriakdad BOE I MO A IRV M ancE Sedfarngn cunrdney tranal e and fore and

forgign cumency exchange cantracti
Met Aspeti Aldhutabls ta Unithalder

Nt dreet Valem parUni
(T Dlass FY 4713412, 408 + 475, 142 Linets cunstanding]
(LD Olass USD 35,004 853 = 2054 318 Units outstsrding]

uip G, 226,401
1360, 487

1,568,675

3100412

1528

PR

301 148

TLEDLAEY

23657
6,341,010
I
£3476
¥, 43
;60
FERL]
5.é0
1724
L34BATF
5177

7,939, 756

B4 55T 176

o 63925661
{4.550.024)

2272701

LALAEIA
[T 64 ST 176

T AFET
[V]T"] 1062

Tha pecomparning notes are an integrad partof these finendsl smterments,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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It mant Incoma:
e
Totml Irverstment frooes

Espenasa:
Cearibunee s s
Bolaragumant foes
Cuadian i fub- debn niErB0eE Tk
Agund company's Tee
Profesnonal fees
Trudtiss fwwr
Tranger agent fised
Regisbration fees
Onhes @i
Totel Evponses

Het Invens et Indeme

Realied and Unrealized Guing{Larres):
Aoalped gaingfosses)
Ui S SR LTIES

Fosmgn cur riricy 1f aimies iont ond Parward lonkign curmandy scthangs sanl ity

Bl raads e bay s
harge in unrasl ced appreo @ ionyid epraciaton]
IrgAm e 0 moaiies

Foamign currency (ronsedions ard fonwaed fom gn cumendy sndhange contracts

Mat change in unresloed sopreciaticn
Mot reabped and unredaed gaing

et ingremie im rat 230ty resulting from epertien

UED

2 006 435
L0435

459,139
459,178
178,574
35538
LERL ]
10,570
WEE
1.h&1
2
1218 by

TIZET1

L.200, 555

(LOET.SE9)
TE7.034)

5802530

{2.862,333)

LISD

The accomparming notes arg an integral part of chegs finandal smtements,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
(Expressed in United States Dollar)

Incrusss (Deoreare] in Med Areis from:

Oparstions:
Blef investment moome LA =] TIL5T
et raaa e loanes (Ye7,034)
et chirrpe o unrealiced spprecien 3,540,129
et ircra e et aiset s reRsling dngm pacstions 2 565 GGG
Birtributions to Unitholder:
Y Qs (1,343,065}
LD Qat (952,129}
Tt ad Chaerdatinng 2.2’5!.[5:"
Capital Timna seisans:
Units nped
Y Qs [ 10,045 Uici) 542,037
LED Qe [0 1, 74 Uinita] 1.[05,041
Unity redirem ed
P Qe [ 105107 Units) (3, 9L0,060)
LD Daes [ 553, 424 Uruie] [5,309,995}
Bet docraane inonet sesets remBing from capital brarections Ha!'ﬂ I_.B}t
Total Deerenie in bigk Adianu (22.919, Tk
et Arpete
Bagnning of yew T3 471884
e you s

The accomparming notes arg an integral part of chegs fnandal smtements,

75/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
(Expressed in United States Dollar)

CarhPlowa From operstiong ackanies
Heh Incraase inn et sty repAting from operations (£ x] 55 6h

Becun'tm eniz to recericie the net ineresde in net seiets remulting from eperstions Eo net cach prorddied by

oparatirg sdbitias;
Purchaes of neestments (44,520,255}
Praconds rom sale wnd mstuenty of erpstm et £5,478,332
et amortirabiony and {acorigtion)) of premeum andl digourdts on corporste debd oblgations e shart tarm

armsm s 59,368
Pl e s O Y rSL BRTE A DU AT (1,300, 555)
Onarge in urresliced spprecation on invesmmis (%8052}
Drarge im urreslised deprestisn en faewird loriegn autrenty mehangy cont s s ZES,132

Changs In s ets and Nahdities related to operatien:

CMCraiss in inbbests rocavah b 402,927

et ity iy g el and - 8" g bl LIF)

Dwrease n sotrued professonal fees {24,200
Ercraass i mecnd el vl es bk 16,950

brecresss i socnued regebretan fees LB&1

Docrwmie i aconaed = in igem on fees 111,258)
Duriine @ sodrosd digrbeaors bee {ER038)
DCucreass mn soorusd sgent company's Faes (1868}
Brcrgease i wocnd ed other eapenses B30

Met cash provided By operating acthdtias m.lﬂ

CarhFlows wied in firandrg sctivities:

Procpeds from Unts renaed 3,044,570

Papment son Leis radeemed (18882 333}
(CeriBuinged paidd b Linitha e 2,295,192}
Mt caah wed in financing ncthiries (17,942 935)
Mt ingrenie im ensh o forsim ooreney 3,733,243

Carihy wrved Foori gy cusraney ot bagnning of yewr 155,845

Carhard farmign currency ot end of year usp EE

The accompaming notes arg an integral part of chegs fnandal smtements,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

(Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

I8 Caee UsD Eaas
Fortha YearEnded  Forthe Year Ended
Febnary 28, 7021 Febnary 28, 2021

hher Ao Vkie, bagreirg of paa i 10088 LD 108y
Bt irvestment mosm 8 b 1] 082
Bt riig e and wregiliped gaing L7 ]
et IrC T BT T P i DBt on JE %]
Lot d aributssng [ 01 s
Biet At Vabue, end of year L Joor AGD 10T
Total return 257 L1
R o Supphen sl dpt i

Mt sty avd of year {000 5] 4 A TER AL D 25004

Antio of pepenses 10 Femge net s T LTI LT1%

Ratio of nef investmant income to average not sisis™ il L1

B8 Calpulitd uge g avarige Units gt stieding For th pinir
A Caloulated onen syl bas

The accompamying notes are an integral part of these Bnandal saberments.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOUIO OF INVESTMENTS

February 28, 2021
{Expressed In United States Dollar)

Principal % of Pt
oot § Cax L] P Valum
FRAED IHCOKSE SECURITIES (99,50 )
ALRTRALLA, (2T
CORPORATE BONDS & BOTES (2.3
BHF Bldon Fnarca Lid,
G ik, 058 s dum LD 3T Lid Lo 1,480, 78
AL TORPIRATE BOMDS B BOTEL 1,493,753
TOTAL ALRTRALLS 1,493,753
BELGHMA D15}
COEPORATE BOMDY & MOTES (LA%)
hi Spiin Oparaton LA,
EUR 1063, 000 2.75% due 05T 5 13R B2 1T HE
Golway 5.4
(a11] 109,000 A9 dun LD 4N ¥ 119894
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDY A HOTES 5T
FOTAL BELGILEA 1
CAMADA b 0%}
COEPIRATE BORMDS B BRRTES [5.09)
Erdridge, ire
LEE 3, 00%, 000 B0t 3T TY 53 3, 5E 0
{11 364,000 0% due 31,1577 2E 400
Trardcanuda Tris
{15+ 100,009 SR due 08/ 5T 92 110417
FOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS B MOTES 3850415
TOTAL CAMADA B ans
DEMMARE [1.9%)
CORPOEATE BOMIS B MOTES [0.9%)
Orised agin
(i1 ] 45,008 21 o 123 4/17 o P T
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS & HOTES IO TRS
TOTAL DERKMARK ST0,TEY
FRANECE fiL4%])
CORPORATE BOMDY & MOTES (16.0%)
ST LA
EUR ), 000 2.7H e 06,11 70800 a8 UILIE
Cranora 5.4,
R 10,008 L 7N dum G20 T L¥ 13608
Ebctrcts e Franca Sa,
B 400,068 T el 04, 5,500 aa L ERT]
P 3, 300, 00 SR chue (11,7 93 %3 3,437.330
Erpe S8,
EUE FLC ] 1 3% chue 0171 6/739 [ H 172471
Orange 5.4
EUR 155008 T2 due 02,M 7188 93 FRECE]
TOTA, =
Ul 0, 008 149 dhs 10,250 15 LELR ]
Eui by, 08 £ TI% choe 35,05,/ 200 L% FELELE]
Lirsbadl-Rodem oo W estel 56
EUR 1, 00,000 LAFR e 0725138 1 LTS
il Erivireoreant LA
(4111 3, 100, 060 20y 31,5 0,/ 3598 a0 74T
TEA COREPORATE BOMDS & HOTEY A9, EL
TDTAL FRANCE 10 609,131
GERBAARY L1855
CORPORATE BOMDS & MOTES (10.6%)
Bapwr sl
EuR 3,545,008 23 e 540275 1.3 4,748,678
EUR 060, 00 L% due L1A TS uE 6148
Bartelom et 5 & Co BGah
e a0, 008 00 e 04/ /TS ] =LA
Erdw Ervergie Baders Wiserttem berg 45
EUR 100,008 LET% cum 40276 0.2 121,69

The accompamying notes are an integral part of these Bnandal saberments.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOUO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2021

{Expressed In United States Dollar)
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Principal % of Mat
£a ¥ Amount Security Dedcription Aspetd Fuir Vilus

FIRCED WO SECURITIES {5905 ) (ot inuesd)
G RRARY (1355 (rontimed)
CORPORATE BOMDA £ MOTES (10,55 (continued)
Evornik induntried 4G

(] 437.008 LN due 2R 1.0% LD Ead Tl
TOTAL CORPOSATE BOMOS B HOTES RTINS
DOTAL GERRAANY T3 2
FTALY (i)
CokPHRATE BOMDE & BIES (50%)
Ervid gt

EUR 1,867,000 250% s 08,2 4238 EXS 2,554,082
BN S

EUR 00,000 3.70% due 3771 3798 HE | TGS
FOTAL COEPORATE SOMDS B MOTES 3101 857
TOTAL ALY 3201457
ELPAERABCARRG (1, 30%)
CORMHIATE BOMDY & MOTES (1190
Ageredoem b

(a1 ] 109,068 1 chu 341 6/ 3080 o Y4
G (y Propiind 5.4

EVR 403,002 L50% chm 2311268 ne 471569
TOTAL COEPORATE S0MDS & HOTES BLALE
TDTAL LUSERSOURG _ ENAE
BETHERLAHIS (15.55%)
COEPHRATE BONDS & MOTES (19.00%)
EulA B For Firmani ch Enbernadional 5.4,

R 113,008 BTN o B9 AAE L1 SIS
| b e cal b e sl 0

EUR A0 003 LT due 0170/ 158 L] T
TonnaT wadding v

EuR 1,855,008 2N o BT 20 25R ') A0 107

EUR 50,008 L00% dhur 13,11,/148 a2 127601
WOl g Inbennational Firanoe Pl

EUR 1,900,000 270 e L2147 72 BE m5a3

e 1.800,000 e dum 041 47778 1] LML
TOTAL COEPORATE SBOBDS A HOTES TR
BOTAL HETHERLANDS 10,195 Be
WED TN (s
COEPOEATE BONDY B MOTES (10.57%)
Fanghuts o Bl dor

EuR 5, 0,08 2R chos 3,1 2081 57 6224058
wolvn Tosseary &8

EUR A0Y,008 A425% due 0310/ T8 &8 — SINER
TDTAL CORPORATE BOMDS & MOTES I T T
TOEAL BARDTH —_— TN
URETFD HIMGD O (P15
CORPORATE BOMDS & MOTES (20.1%)
BP Capitsl Warkets PLC

R 1,379,000 b, oy 33,7 2T Al 290,887
Earoni-a T o i e bt PLIC

EUR I, 0 L AT s 38,1 8,50 13 ETER ]
CertncaFus

211] 109,000 00 dhun 041076 0.4 MpIa)
R Brina PLE

L B 741,088 54N chue 056,710/ T 81 LR T
S8 PLC

1) 175,000 A4 TN dum 3516 TT 28 1,788 083

The accompamying notes are an integral partof these Bnandal sbements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS [continued)
February 28, 2021

{Expressed In United States Dollar)

Principal % of Mat
Currersy  Amount  Security Deseript Agieti Faiir Vinlus

FIED | WOl SECLIRITIES {9957} fonntinued)
WINET FD IR0 RN (20 155 doontised]
CORPHUATE BOMDG 8 BT (2415 (ontinged)
odsfona Group PLC

4173 3,500, 05 2.50% dud 310178 LR -} (£ ] R PR T
TOTAL CORPORATE SO 5 MOTES V5 ST AT
DOTAL LINTED RAGD 0 15 STOATY
WNETED STATEY 6 7%)
CORPORATE BOMNDS & BOTES [6.2%)
Sl ety S

(0] 1,405,000 L7 due 1201550 £} 1,500,533

S0 LEIS000  4T5%due 060150 1 LI 768
End erprige Froduct s Opersting LLC

(L2+] TH000 s due 05T 8] eI
Senitbugey

L2 4] EDRODE 0% due 31,51 H] (L]
TOTAL CORFORATE BOMD S & MOTES 3
DOTAL LT ED STATES B TS i
TOTAL FECED BOCOMSE SECLURITIES {Covt USD 60 24 0,81%) 6 F 0 401
POTAL INVIST WENTS {Coat LD 60,2 40 810) BRI (I 4,526,401
A AND EMER ASSETS 1N EXOT %S OF LLARIIT IS 3] T
NET AR AETS 1090 ss 84,552,178

E repatusl srowy. Matunty date preserted represants the red ol dae
Bpaaturiy debeof the veourity 15 L17274/3007

The accompamying notes are an integral part of these Bnandal sabements
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 28, 2021

{Expressed In United States Deollar)

Fuand Leval F i Forwign Currenoy Exchangs Contracts
Met Usraalired
Motioral  Sottlemont Mational Unrealized Unrealized  Apprudation/
Suy  Couinteeparty Amourt _ Outi Sull A urd L] L]
TR CEibarik b 116906  Dfsfzl oae (a5 Wi FrRT ] {a.394) usG §6372)
U Golidman Sat 16T DSRS0 usD (FL1) o - ]
EUR  Roysl Bank of Canada 188,288 DASITIIL USD {179,931) T - 8
EUR Ryl Bank of Canada 115,63 DAL USD {1385, T2E] m - m
L Sqan v Bank nd Tt o, 16958 pafas/Rinl  USD (H4,738) - (i1} [e19)
EUR SAate Strwe Bank And Tt Co. 1650045 04/T00F020 WSO [L§95.111) 18,357 - 18,357
EUR  Sate Strwed Bk And Trust Co 1306033 04/18/3000  WSD [%511,931) - (2,322} {12,312)
EUR et reet Bank &nd Trist Co, SLTTE NSRRIl WSD (62, 655 ] - b
LR Werpas Banking Comorstion LA 04IafH wED [Lean8%) = (%11 ]
TUl Wit Bk CoiEarion 3,08 B4SMRIL LSD (3¢, bag) 13 - 11
GBP faste Sreet Bank And Tt So, LodaEN  B4NTINE  USD {145,874) LT - FEIT
USD Otk b, 1455 D4/20f2021  PY (155.304) &L - 5]
UED  SAete Eiveet Bank Snd Trust Co, 160 D202 EUR {3, 850,435) 176,585 - L7585
UED et Shrmet Bank e Trust Co, TR IO TR [R005.45%) el - T
U e Pt ok A Trut o o el ok (08,547} - {43, 808) [y 84
USD  WeRper Banking COporation 194,260 D42 EUR (161,105 - [1. T4} b i)
Uil SiRail wEH  {RTi49) UD  (a5.7H)
1% Hedped Cluds Forvward Forsign Curmarey Exdsange Contract
Mt Urraakned
Motioral  Swttlemant Natlonal Urreallzad Unrealiced  Appruclation/
Coantegparty fnstia__ ety - Amount ___Appradistion  {Dspescistion) (Dspecistioe)
PV e Stomet Bank S Tt o, 18,2 4283 wsh (126418) LD BT [LE03) uso {8, 800)
Y SAste Suwet Bank Snd Trt Co. LT, 704,308 DA/2T00L  USD (F0ETT) - [4. 400} 44,400]
PV LIB5AG London Branch TR D/2T0IL USD (302,798} - L.557) {1,557)
Y Wetpat Banking Comporation LALALTHY DAIGSOIT WED [FELELT] - [3.530) (HEED ]
WY witpae banking Comorslion 10,51y 04S200Q1 UsD (LR - (21} (4]
B W Bk COMEariian 87847 048000 0D IR ] - [F.am0} .18
Y Westper Banking Corporstion BMEE DT USD (B.867) - (T} 23]
Y Wesipar Sanking Corporation 48T 400,987 DAL USD AR IRE] - (1.DEET67) 065, 267)
B Wetpar Bankng Comporation RTBLTIT OA/2O/T001 UED (52,07} - (30} [#50]
[E = T PR R P LR I 19, 47,441 ) 040 - 5040
UL ki Lk 1S, TRE DASRTIOL Y e, 505,303} 1] - 1]
UIEDy - ok Sachsd 1B5,038  DASTIL PV {18,599,145) LEB4 - 4584
USD  Gokdman Swthd 169,150 D4/M/T0R1  PY JITELT.400) 3ESL - 3651
UL W it Bnking CIMpOrution 106,855 DELATOL PV (ELOS343) 30 - 300
USD Wedpar Banking Corporation 155,79 AWML PV 16,148,395 L0ES - 40Ed
UED  Weerpar Banking Comporsiion 115,534 S Py {11561, 784) 1B - LLES
UED W intpd Banking Corporation ¥ WAL Py LOTTAIR) (E b - BUT
WS Wil Banking Conporstien 19097 odfreiniol e {4240, 158) TAHL - B
LG W TR Bkl COAEOruton 100,478 042001 Py {10,552 455) 856 - LG
USEH  WeRpat Bankang CMporation A3977 DAAWTIT  PY [&£55.300) T8 - T8
USDH ‘W estpac Banking Corporation LESOBES. D421 Y (L5L 861,346} 57, 355 - 51,385
UsD WA TIT weD {1083 0} WRD (aeTasa)
Cumerey |epard
EUR Eura
GBR Barttich Pound
P AP W
uED S Deoitar

The accompamying notes are an integral partof these Bnandal sbements.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

MELS Corporate Hybrid Sequrities Fund {the "Fund™] is a series trust of the hikko AM Gffshore Funds, an open-ended unit
brust epnshlichad by & supplermantal trust deed daned Dacarnber 16, 2016 [the "Sup plemantal Trust Daed® ), under tha laws
of the Cayrnan islands. Mides AM Offshore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15 20432 [the
“Master Trust Deed’), under the lews of the Cryman llands and is Fomsed with the Cayrrean ldands Monstary Autharity
purasant to sacbon (1)) of the Mutual Funds Act (2008 Revsion). The Fund commenced operations on Febneary 22,
k1 el

The Fund's ftsats are managed on a day to day bads by MNikko &M Glabal Cayman Lirnited [the “Manager”]. The Mansger
delegates investment management duties to Nkko Asset Management Co, Lid., {the "investment Manager™). The
Ireestrnant Manager delagates imestmant managsment duties to Neuberger Betrman vestment Advisers LLC, e “Sub-
Imeestment Bmnager”). The administration of the Fund is ddegated to Brown Brothers Harmiman & o (the “Custodian®™
and "Sub-Administrator”), alimited partnership anpanized under the laws of the State of Maw Yok

The imvestrment chjective of the Fund is 1o achimee amid to long term totdl return through income and capital appreciation.
Thie Serfes Trust shall mainly imasst in both investment grade and non-investrment grads hiybrid securities that are issesd by
nan-financial corporate issuers and hanve been rated by sither of Mocdy's, S8P or Rtdh, The highest rating from all thres of
these agencies shall ke applied to each corporate hybrid secueity and the average rating of the portfolic shall be BSE-fBaa3
o ahove.

Corporate hybrid debt mourities are structured insrumenits that combine both equity and foed incorme charec teristics that
generaly offer a means for lssuers o bomow money from irvestons In reburn for Interest payments. Such corporate [suers
mury utitize hybrid debt for & variety of reasons, including bal stering their capital lewels, lowering ther weightsd sverage
oont of capital, diversifding their funding sourges and managing credit ratings, Though terms and corditions hare begome
increasingly standardized, the specific characteristics of sach instrument (such as payment conditions, the ratioof debt and
equity-like features, tirme frames and applicable ratesh can vary.

The Sariss Trre may dss irvest in fixsd and loating rate debt sacuites, induding bonds, Bsued by gosamments and
goveammiant rel ated entities

Deriwative Instrurmeen ts willl be used for efficient por diolio management andfor investment purposes, aswell as for hedging.

The mmsets of the Series Trust may be hedd In one or more cumrendes, and the Series Trugt will, in pinciple, engage in
cunrrencoy hedging betwaen the cumency of denaomination of eady Jass (US Dolar for USDOass and tapaness Yo for JFY
Oass) and the cumency of the investments In the underlying portfolio, provided, howeser, that such hedging for 1PY Qs
may be parformed thragh the UGS Dollar,

Urscler thie berms of the Supplemental Trust Deed avd the Master Trust Desd, RrstCanbbaan intermational Bank end Trust
Company [Cayman) Umited [formery OBC Barkc and Trest Company (Cayman] Umited up to March 13, 2030) [the
“Trustee” and the “Adrmirdstrabor”) isnasrsad o Trustes of the Fund,

The Marager appointed Mitsbishi UF) Morgan Stanley PB Seasities Co, Lid to act as Agent Cormpany (the “Agent
Company™] and the Manager appointed M mubishi UF) Mogan Smnley FB Securides Co,, Lid to act as Distibutor (the
“Cistributor”) of Linitsin baoan o such other parson of institution o may be sppcinted o distributor of the Series Trust by
the Manager from time o time.

MM ARY OF HGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES

Tha Fund s an Investrent Company that follows the accounting and reponting guidancs in FASE Actounting Standards
G fication 946,

Live of Estimotes

Tha sccomparming fnancial statements have been preparad in accordance with accounting principles gener sty scceprad in
the United States of America [“LLS GAAP"], The preparation of fnendal statemants in sccondancs with LS GAAP requires
e Furkl's managermant bo ke astirnates and sssumptions that alfect fw reported ameunts of ssse s and Eabilites and
disclomres of contingant assets and lish¥tes &t the date of the fnancd statements and the reported amounts of
renenruss and expanses during the reporting pericd, Actual results, induding the adtimate arncount realized upon the sda of
fair walued investrents, could differ from those estirmates and such differences may be Sgnificant.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continu ed)

Baria of Accounting

Saqurity and contractual trangactions are recordsd on & tradafcontract-data basis. Interesk income is racordad on an
effective veld basis, net of any applicable withholding . Interest expense and cther expenses are recorded on an acorual
bass Redized gains ond | omes from seourity transacBons are computed on the basis of the average cost of the securties
seid or covered, Charges In tha waluadon of imvescmaents ane recorded in the Statement of Operations as unrealized
appreciation o depredation.

Virluotion of (nvestmaen s

Bomds and cther debt securities, inchodng restricted se¢uriiies [other than short-term obligations but including listed
issues) are fair walued at their last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are normally raded, on the
b of valuations furnished by a pricing senvice, use of which has been approved by the Imsestment Manager, o if no sale
hars ocourred, the bid price on the waluation date as provided by brokoers who are market makers in the securites ANl debt
securies with less than 12 months 1o maturity date, in principls shall be fair valued using an amoni sed cost sffected by an
affective yeld accumulatedfamortization method to their maturity dote with adjustments based on comparison with
ket oot a8 regesred,

I aceordance with the suthoritacive guidance on faer valios measuremnents and d@xclosures undesr LS. GAAR, the Fund
discloses the falr value of its Irvestments In a erarchy that pricritipes the inputs 1o valuadon techriques used o maeasune
e fadr vlue, The Ferarchy gives the highest priceity 1o valustions based upon wradiusted auated prices in active markets
for identical amsats or labllides (Level 1 meagrement) and the lowest pricity to valuations based upon unchsenable
inputs that are sgnificant o the waluation (Level 3 messurementsh The guidance estahiishes three levals of the fair value
hlerarchy as follows

I Lewel ] = inputs that reflect enadiusted quoted prices In acthve markers for identical investments tak the Fund
i the ability to acoess af the messurement date;

I Lovel @ = inputs other than guoted prices that are signéficent and cbssrvable for the asset or Uability sither
directly or indirectly, Induding Inputs in mariets that are not considerad to be acthee;

| Level 3 = nputs that are Sgnifcant and uncbsenvable,

Irgaats are used in applying the varlous viluaiion techniques and broadly reler 1o the asaemg fons that markst participants
use b makoe valuation decidons, induding assumptions about risk, Inputsmay include peice information, speciBc and broad
oracht data, Figuldity statstics, and other lactors, A Anancal instrument's level within the fair valee Merarchy fs based upon
the lowest bevel of any input that is dgnificant to the falr value measrement. However, the determination of what
comutlintes “observable” recuires significant pdgment by the Investrnent Manager, The imvrsiment Manager considers
chbpervable data to be market data whizch s readily metable, regularly distributed or updated, rellable and veriflable, not
propriemey, and provided by Independent scurces that are acdvsly invaived in the rdbavant market, The categorizaticn of a
fimanclal ingtnuersent within the hierarchy [sbased upon the pricing rarsparency of the instrument and does not necessarly
cormespond to the bmpsirrent Manager'sperosived fek of hat inttrument,

Irrwesirmants whose values e based on the guated merket prices in sctive rmsrkets, and therefors clissiBed within Leval 1,
windd imcdede actvely raded sguides, certain LS government and soversign cbligations, and gertan money market
securities, The Ivestrment Manager would mot adjust the guoted price for such instrumments, esen in siuat ons whare the
Fursd held alarge podtion and a sale could reasonably impact the guoted price,

Irvesbments that rade in markets that are not considerad 1o be active, but e valued based on quoted market prices,
dealer quotations or altermative pricing scurces supported by cbsenvable Inputs are dlassified within Level 2, These include
Empestmen tgrade debt stcurites, short-term Irvestments and forwerd Foreign ourrency exchangs contracts, As Level 2
Evesbments Include positions that are not traded In active markoets and/or are subject o transfer restrictions, waluations
iy b mdsted 1o reflect illigu dity andfor non-orarslenability, which are generally based on svallabl e markst information,

Irvestmants dasaffed within Level 3 hie sgrificant unobservable inputs, &5 they would rrade infrequently, Levsl 3
Enstruments would indude asset-badked securities and collateralized mortgage cbligations. As cbhsenable prices are not
avilable for these securities, e Fund would use veluagion tedhnigues oo derive the fair valus

Thae inguits or methedalogy used for valuing securities are not nacesserly an indication of the risk smodated with investing
i thoss securities
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SUMMARY OF SGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES [¢ontinu sd)

Viluotion of lnvestmen s [contin ued]

The following table presents tee Gnandal instrurments carrfed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilides by caption and by
bevel within the valustion hisrarchy 8t of February 28, 1021 Further dessifestions of the fintrdl in@aments ore
presentad in the Pordiolio of Irvestments, Thers veere no mowsments between levels during the year,

darrats ot Fair Valu Farialun ok
Level tevei2 tavel 3 Februney 28, 2021
Fingd Incom i Tagulies LD - [T £4,726401 st - [T 64,735, 400
Forward Foreign Currency
Enthutope Cantrg 1 - 301,148 - 301, 148
Total (1,7 = T 6d, 537 545 LI = (1 e] Gl 53T 540
Ushilitinr 38 Fair Valus FadrValua at
avel1 Laval2 aval3 February28, 2021
Forward Foregn Curency
Enchirge Carfrity 1) - {1;x] LISAAE L5 = 0] 1. 348 439
Total LS —___usD___ LAR4IY LD -__um L3R 479
Feralgn Curremcy Translation

Assats and labilides held in curendes other than Unived States Dollar |*LGCF or the “Functional Curency”®] are rransiated
1o e Fumetional Currency ot the me of excharge prevailing at the finencial staternent date. Incorne and expenses ore
rarsdated at the rate of exchange prevaling at the date on which the Income or expanss @5 incurred. Realized and
wrradized gaing and losees aising on forsgn currency ranssctions ang induwded in the Smtement of Dperations in the
peviod inwhich they oo,

Tha Rind does not isclate that portfon of the reailts of operations resuling from changes in forsign exchangs rates on
mpestrmen s rom the ucuations arisrg from changes in market prices of ssaurities hald, Such flucteations o induded
with e et reatiped and unreal ped g n o boss from inestments,

Imcome Taxes

Unider the curment laws of the Coyman isands, there are no Incomas, withhol ding, capital galns or other tises payable by
thee Fundd, in cortaln jurisdictions other than the Cayrran lslands, foreign mes rmay be withiveld ar source on dhvidends and
ngerest raveived by the Furd, Capid gaing derived by the Fundin such [urisdctions generally will be exemat from foneign
Encorms o withhclding teces arsource, The Fund nterids to conduct s affars sudh that it wl not be subject o incorms tea
Iy gy jurisdi cion, As a result, no prosdsion for Incom e tewes has been made In the financial statements. Uinitholder may be
tEmed on e proportionate share of the Fund's tax basis incorme bawed on thelr individual groumsmarces

Tha Fund fellows the suthoritative guidance on actounting for and & sdosurs of uncertanty in e podtions [Framda
Accounting Standards Board (“FASET) - Accouniing Standards Codificadon 7400, which reguires the Manager o determine
whether &t position of the Fund is mors likely than not to be watsined upon expmination by the applicable mxing
authority, Includng resclution of any related appeals or ingation processes, based on the techricad maerts of e pagtion,
For e positiond mesting the mord [ikely than not theeshold, the mx benefit recognized in the nandal smtaments is
reducad by the largest benefic that has 8 greader than fifty percent ikeiihood of being reatiped upon wWiimate setdement
with the relevent tadng suthority, The Minager has deterrnined that there is minimal or fo affect on the finanda
saterTen s being. under this authortathve gad dance,

Ferward Foreign Curren o Exchan ge Controcts

Tha Furd may enter into lonward forsign currena) sndthange conlracts bo hadie aparme foraign curmency eachange rate
rigks on all o a pordon of non-USD denorminated invesments or for efficent portfalio management purposes, 'When
enlering inta & forwerd foragn cumrency exchange contracy, the Fund agress to receive o deliver a Foad quantey of
forsign currency for an agresdupon prics on an agresd future date, Thesa contracts &re vabusd dadly, and the Fund's net
equity theraln, representing unresiisd spprecistonfdeprecistion] on the contracs s memured by the differance
beoween the forward forsign currency exchangs rates a2 the dates of entry into the contracts and the lonsard rates at the
reporting dete, is induded in the Statermant of Assers and Liabilices Raalized and unreslizsd gaing and losses e indudad
b the Statenent of Dperations.

Thase imcrurments irvchve marker risk, credic fsk, o both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount reccgremed in the
Siptamant of fusets and Lisbdlitien Figo seise rom the posgbde inability of countarpartias 1o meat the el of thair
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

SUMBARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [eontinued)
Ferward Forelgn Curren oy Exchan ge Controcts [con taved]

contracs and lrom rrovement in aurrency Bnd secunities values and interest rates, In addition to the dass level hedging,
e Fund had readized losses of B0 4,143,959 on 85 forwand fordgn currency exchange contracts during the year with an
verage notiond of UBD 6,514,327 and an average term o raturity of 56 days. The Fund also had resiiped gains of LSD
2,088, 296 on 28 foremrd Toreign currency exchange contracts hald at the Class JPY Hedged level during the year with an
sverage notiona of USD 10,466,797 and an sverags tenm to maturity of 75 days

Cazh ond Forefgn Currency
Carsh anad foreign currendy congrises all curmency held with Brown Srothers Hasriman B Co,, and overmight and other short
term placem ents with cther fnandal Tnstutions,

UNITS

The neet assets of the Fund are divided into JFY Oass Units and LSE Class Linfts, The Units are dencinated in lapaness Yen
ored United States Dollar, JPY s Undts and LSD Cless Urts are svailable 1o an sligible imestor whe §s oy person,
corporation o entity which s mot ) a cidzen or resident of the LLS, a parnership crganized or exdsting in the LS, o any
COrporation, trusk of other entity organized under the laws of o exdsting in the US; |iT) resident or demiciad in the Cayrean
Idands (axcluding ary cbject of a charitable tus or power of an seempied o none-reddent Coyman Idands companyl; (i)
wnable 1o wderiba for or hald Unit without vickafing spplicable laws, o fiv) & custedian, nomines, of trustes for any
parson, corporation or entity described In ) to 5] above. Both the IPY and USD classes share proportionately in the gains
and losses of the Fund level iImvestmenis. In additon, the [FY class recelves gains and losses from the X forwands helfd ot
e IPY Olass loved for hedging purposss, Refer o Mobe 1 fior further datails on the Furd's currency hedging s ategy.

Tha Manager msy detenmins 10 isus o o mone classes of Uinits of the Fund wi thou © pricr noton 1o or written consent of
the Unitholder.

Al of the netassets attributabie to P Oerss Units and USD Class Units ane held by one Unitholder.

APV Eleds WD Bsiz Tokal Fund

Balancs & Felsusry 79, 37020 UsD 487182613 UsD 9189271 UID 7747854
Subierption during the per 42,032 1095841 3037873
Bedemphions during the year (09180809 (6, 33, 99%) (163085
Comtributicen (L3d3,063) (952.029) 1519
et incraase inn et ossets resulling from operstions 1,584,411 L ELE 156

Blet Agate ot Februacy 18, 3L UED  BRSAT.TFE USD  TEO00LA5Y uSD  GASERLITE
Humber of Un iz n isme o February T3, 2000 310204 1750903 32TLEy
kit s s duning the year 1045 M T8 2175
Ueins s o dhurieng i vk {105, 107) [sam.429) [705,531)
durn b of U rs i i ssie o Fabeuwry 58 2021 473,182 2.354.318 17T AR
Bhet Asat Value par Uit ot Februery 38, 2001 uED ¥a45 D 1LY

Subroriptions for Units
LED s Units were first ismeed 8t an inigal iswes price of UED 10000 per Unit JPY Oass Uris wers Fratissued ot an initid
e price of 19 10,000 per Unit On and after initidl dosing day, the minimum inftial subacription for USD Jass Units per
subrscriber s 10 Linits o mars, 8nd in multiphes of 1 Unit thersafoer, The ririmom initiel subscription for IPY Oass Units
per gubscriber i5 1 Unitof rrore, 80 in rudtiples of 1 Urits thevealter,

The Marager may walve o change the minimem initial and additonal subscription amounts set forth sbove in its scle
discratian from time 1o Hme

Soles Charge

I addiion to e subserption price, the spplcant shall pay & sdles charge calculated at up to 3% (=xcluding any tax
applicable) of the purchass price, to the Distribuator.
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

UNITS |contin ad)

Linit Redempfons

The Fund Fecognizes rederrations in sccordancs with the suthoritative guidence on distinguishing Tabiides from sgquin,
Redernptions, whether expressed as Linioed Steves Dollar, Japanass Yen of Units, are refognized as labiides when each of
the Linited States Dollar, Japaness Yen amd Uil sriounts reguedled in the redamption natce becomes Szed, which
ganerally may occur sither at the gme of the recsipr of the nodes, o on the last day of a fiscal yaer, depending on the
nature of e reguest. A%  result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but baed upon year end net ety e
raflected as redempiions peyable at February 33, 2071, There wane USD 43,687 of rederrptions pavyable a6 at February 18
2021, includad as Payabis for Linits radesrmed in the Ststernent of Asets and Lisbilides

Repurchaae of Unies

Each Uncthel dar may request & repurchase of Units by the Fund unless repurchases have besn suspendad by the Marager,
Urits wiill ke repurchased daily at the Net Asset Value per Unit as at the reevant Repurchase Day {sach Valuation Day, or
such ather day or daws a5 the Manager may from time 1o trme daterrmins in respect of the Series Trum), Thare will be no
repurchace chargs on repurchases of Units held over fve years.

Compulsary Redempdion

In the ewent that the Trustes or the Mansger shall determine that any Units of ary Soss of & Series Trust are being hald by
or for the berefit of a person whao Is not an Eligible tnvestor for such Serles Trust or that such holding would cause the
Trust or the Series Tryst to be reguined bo register, be subject to tan or wolabe the laws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustes
or the Manager has reason to doubt the legitmacy of the scurce of monles used to fund the subscription or purchase of
such Linits, or for whatewer reason fwhich may not be disdosed by the Trustes or the Manager to Unitholder) that the
Trugbes o tha Manager comsiders appropriate at its absclute discredon hindng regard to the interests of the Unitholder of
the relevant Oass or the Unitholder of the Series Trust as a whole, then the Maneger, after consul tation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder theveol to sell (subject 1o the provisions described below in the scon headed =Transfer of Linics™)
such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of such sale, faling which the Manager
iy radeam such Lints,

Teminotion of the Fund
Upon termination, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out or retalning adequate provision
for al liabilities properly payable and retaining prosision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall distribute the
procesds of that realization to the Unitholder proporiionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
terrminaticn of the Fund.

stributions to Lindth ofder

The Manager may, In Its sole discration, dedare disributions and no guaranee 5 made that these will mke place,
Distributions will be dedared on sach Distribution Record Oste and caloulated on each Ex-Oistributfion Cote. Distribution
Periogd is i pari od cormmencing, from the calendar day following the precading Distribution Record Date and ending onand
including the Distribution Record Date. The distributionswill be paid on the ralevant Distribution Peyrment Cate, provided
that such amcunt [l anyjl declared with respect 1o each Olass of Units shall only be paid out of the Senles Trust's net
income, reafized and unrealized copital gains and amy distributable funds of the Seres Trust attibutable to such Chass of
Linite s detarrnined by the Mansgar,

The declaration of distributions to Unithal der reduces the Class Level Net Asset Valise per Uinit without any corresponding
tharge in the rumber of Jows Laved Units per Unitholder. This results in a Unithdder's overdl investment in the Fund
being reduced, In addiion, amy disributions during a year which are In excess of the Fund's et increase in net msets
resulting from operationsreadts in apartion of the di stribution being return of capital.

The amount of disributions, iF amy, will be determined by the Manager in its sole discretion, and no represmntation or
puarantes is made that adisgribution wil be made in respect of each or any Distribution Period,

Capitalization

The Met Asset Vaue per Unit is caloulated for each Dealing Day {=ach Valuation Day, or such other day or days o the
Manager may from tme bo Sme determine Inrespect of the Series Trust), by dividing the difference In value between the
Fursd"s asmerts and liabilites [Inchuding accrued fees and agpenses of the Furd) by the number of Units cutstanding.

The Trust Deed stipulates that the mumber of Lints to be isseed in the Fund shall be uriimited as the Manager hall
detanming and shall be without par value,

86/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

DERFVATIVE FINANCIAL IMSTRUMENTS

Aocourting Starderds Codification BI5-10-50 regquines disclooures about denvative insrurnents and hedging sotivites it
recaanes thal the Fund discloss: a) how and why an entlty uses derivatihe instruments, b) how derivative instruments and
related hadged iterns are accounted for and <) hew derivative instrumants and related hedged fpems affect an enting's
fimancial poddon, Rnandal performance and cach fows,

The Fund orarsacts forward derivative instruments prmanly for hedging purposes with each instrument™s primary risk
emponre bang foreign eachange risk. The forward foreign ourency exchinge contracts hald by the Fund do not gualify &
hadges for Bccounting purposss under the requirements of ASC BLS, The fadr valoe of these derivative irstruments is
Included in the Statermant of Assets and Lisbilities with changas in fgr value reflected sa redized gaing{losses) or net
change in unrealzed appreciation/depreciation] on derivativeswithin the Statemnent of Dperatfons [Mote 2),

The Fund may snter [nto an international Swaps and Derlvetlve Association, Ine Master Agreement (“IS0A Master
Agraement’) with {5 counterpartes in order to mitgate countevparty rise, The I50A Master Agresment I5 ypically
regadated by the Fund and it counterpartas, contairing the bidateral perrrs and conditions for all subsequent derivative
rarsactions The 1504 Mager Agreement alfows for the netting of all amounts owsd to or due from counterparty into a
sirgle net payrent il B oredt event or default should coour,

Tha Fursd has dected 1o nat offser lair vales receivables and payables for devivative contracts on the face of the Stetemeant
of Assets and Uabiides,

At February 28, 2021 the Fund had entered into the following dervative assets by counterparty nat of amounts mallable
fiowr st wndar @ Master Memting Agrasment [(“RMNAC ) and net of oy collateral receivad by the Fund:

Derheativn fus ety et Han-carh Cath Mk Amount of

Counterperty Subjen to s MNA Avsilsble hor Offiet Collstersl Recshad Collutersl Recaived D rivathos & vets®

Gaiband tea, [+ [T+ 4, 394) S0 - 1D - EET
Golidm an Sacha 8461 - - - B,&61
Ryl Bank of Camicla 100 = . . LO26
State Street Bank And Trust Co. FiLRF {ne1x - - -
Wespar Banking Conpoe gion Toa07 {70407 - = -
Total USD 301148 USD usD ] —usD 10,235

At February 28, 2031 the Fund had entered Into the fodlowing derivative llabilites by counterparty net of amounts avallable
lior ot indar & MMNA and net of shy collateral pladgad by the Fund:

Dt Mt Armasard o

Lishiliier 0 erivakives Mervcath Cath Darkvative
=] to s MG Awailable for Offtet Collatersl Pl Collataral Fla Liabilgias®
ik A ED 4 FLED [T = LI = IS0 -
tate Strewt Bank And Trus Co. PLANE Ll S Fril = = A4,914
LS AL Loradon Brandn 1,587 - - - L55T
Wt i ek g Cerper @atn 1,080 440 {70407} - - 1,004,033
Taal USH  LMEAMUSD  [86323)USD -usD -UsD 1067506

E N¢Mlﬁlhhﬂlmﬁmm*hhﬁlﬂfﬁ“nﬂqﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂ

Al February 25, 2021 the Fund had entered into the following derivatives:

— et Durhathus sty Dacbepthy
Drgribrntives Statemant Ststamant
Mat & d for e L el of fagats snd
Hedging by tram anks Limbl mises Loecaicion Fuir Valus Liphsliting Location Fair Vulus

Farward Bareign carrency  Linnesliped sppreciation

Ureealiz ed depr osoaticn

wachange conbracts onforeard foneign onforwerd foreign
{(Currancy itk furnire s nchuege =D Carrendy aack g D 1,388.479)
COTETaLs CordrEls
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

DERFVATIVE FINANCIAL IMSTRUMENTS [ ontinaad)

Tha effect of derivative instrumenis on the Smtementof Opsrations for the year endad February 25, 2081:

Changs in Unrealized

Location of Raalizad Apprchtion or
Derbatives Mot dccounted  Gain or [Loss) Galn o (Loss) [Depredetion) en
for 51 Hedging Indtruments 50 Derkvathoes o Derhatives D erbritived

Het realized losses on foreard {ooegn
Forward foreign aarrency twmenry eichange conbrack g
enchange Lontrscs charige i uresal ned spprecistion [deprecimon)
{Curminey Ridk ] o Bare bed Faraign aurtincy dnchange sordracts LSO {Z0E0663)  LED 12894123
MANAGEMENT FEES

The Manager is endied to recave out of the mgets of the Seres Trust a management fee of a toml of 0,658 per annum
0L 305 por s in respect of Fee for the Manager ond the Imverment Manager and 0,355 per anrum in respect of fes
for the Sub-brvesiment Manag e ) of the Net Amset Value acorued on, and calculated a5 a8, each Vauation Doy and payable
manthly in aresrs i addiion, the Manager is siso entithed 1o be reimbursad out of the assets of the Saries Trust for any
espanees incurred by Tt In the proper performance of Its powers and dudes a5 permited under the Masber Trust Desd,
Curing the yeor ended Febneacy I8 2021, the Monager samed fess of LBD 459,128 of which USD 30,243 is sl
cutstanding as of Febnaany 28, 2031,

The Manager will pary the fees of the Investrrent Manager oot of {ts fees. The Imsesiment Manager wil pay a fee 1o the
Sub-irvestrient Managar out of the fae received by the Imvestrient Manager,

CUSTODUAN AND SUB-ADMINISTRATOR S FEES

Tha Fumd has & custedy snd sccounting agreament with Brown Brothers Msriman & Coo [the “Custodian® and "S-
Adrniniurator”) for which the Custodian recsives 8 fee calculatad ard pafd monthly based on ol s and ransaction
wolurma

The Custedian and Sub-Adminiarater i3 enfded o recave out of i aswts of the Series Trust Bn admindstration ee
(including trandar agant fes) calculated based on the Net Asst Value a5 ot sach Vauation Day at the following annual
fate

- QL0ERup by [and including] LISD2 50 million;

- LT Mo b0 [aned inclucing] LISD 500 million;

- LG oxter USDI 500 milian.

Im sddidion to the above NAY based fee, thers is o ransactona based fes changed, which varies depending on the volume
of rasactions

Such adrminisradon Tee is payable monthly in areacs, and mibject © the minimom annual fee of LGB0 30,000, In addition,
the Custodian and Sub-Administrator is aleo entdded to receie oustomany safigeeping fees and ransaction changes. All
out-of -pochat expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Adminigrancr shall also be bome by the Serdas Trust

TRUETEES FEES

Th Trustes is entited 1o receive it of the atses of the Series Trust o cormbined Ted ot the rate of 0.015% per arnum of
the Mt Asset Value accrued on, and caloulaned as at, each Valuation Day and payable sermi-annually in amears, subject toa
erermrarn anrud fee of USD 15,000, Quring the year endad February 25 2021, tha Trustes sarned fees of USD 10,970, of
wiiich USD 1 3, 75015 sill outstanding a5 of Februany 15, 2031,

AGENT COMPANY S FEES

Tha dgent Company is antithad to rateive out of the mwsats of the Series Trust & fae &t the rate of $.05% per anrum of tha
Mat Asset Valus sccrued o, snd coloulated as at, each Valustion Day and payible quartady in arrears. During the yesr
ended February 28, 2021, the Agent Company carmed fees of USD 35,318, of which LGB0 5,260 is s8]l cutstanding & of
Fabruary 28, 2021,

DISTRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distributor 5 entided o receive out of the assats of the Series Trist a Tee ot the rate of 0B5K per annum of the Mt
Assat Value accrued on, and calcudated s ar, sach Valuador Day and payable quartedy in armears, Durirg the year ended
Fabruary 28, 2023, the Distributor samed fees of LISD 458,119, of which USD 68,277 s sl cutsnding a5 of February I8,
2021,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

CITHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and exgranses in connection with the establishment of the Series Trust end the offening of e Units, together
with the sstablishment of the Trust, indudirg the cofts and espendes of preparing and printing sy prospecus of
explanamoey brochures required, sre sstimated to amount to spproximately LUSD 180,000, Such tosts and experses will be
amortized within the first five (5] financial years of the Serles Trus uniess the Trustee decides that some other mathod
shiad be applied. The Administrater reosives LSO 1,500 per anrurn for FATCA f CRS cornplione e sangoe,

FIMANCLAL FISK MANAGEMENT

Tha Furt's sctivities sapose it to o variary of fnandal riskes: markar dak [induding price risk, Enterest rate ik, Bnd curranoy
vk, credip sk and liguidity sk,

Ilarkes Risk
Al insesiroents present 8 risk of loss of capital, The investirient Manager moderates this sk theough a careful slection of
securities and other Francia instruments,

Thar Fursd”s irvestrnent management process is described in hote 1, The primaey determinant of the Fund’s sbility 1o meet
it cbjective of mid to long term capitdl sppreciation while earning incorme is dependent of the perfoermance of the
mpestrren tin the Underhfng Fund,

The Fund's irvestrnent management process is descrbed in Note 1, The Fund' s cyerall mbrket positions ane monitored oo
adally basis by the Fund's ivestreent Manager.

The value of the s imvesmmaents &5 affected by 0 rumber of Factors, including but not lemited to, changes in the wider
ecenormy, inancd and currency mirkcsts, lorsgn aurrency exchange rabes, interet rabe Mmowernants and the oadit ratings
of gdebt isauers

Tha Fund may enber into forward foreign curency eschangs conacts whith to venying degrees represent a market risk in
axcess of the amount reflected on the Fund's Statement of Assats and Uabllities. The notional amount of the contract
raprasents the sxtent of the Renc's pardcipaiion i these Ginancial ingruments. Market rldes assodated with aedh contracts
arier dues b the posable mowements in forelign exchange rates underying these Instnaments.

Crther market and credit rises indude the poml bility that theee may be an Nliguld market for the contracts, that the change
b thie value of the eontract ey nol directly corralans with changes in the value of the underlying currendes o that the
counterparty © @ fornward contract dafaults on lts cbligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
eouEe o boss dus 1o CoUnterparty nonperfomance on open forwards foragn currency exchangs contractsis limited o
the unrealized appreciaticn inherent in such finand sl Instruments which are recognized in the Staterment of Assats and
Liabolli s,

Interast Rote Rivk

Tha Fund's exposure 1o changes In interest rates relabes primarty to the Fund's imresoments in debs securides contracts,
Irtarest rate fluctustions may ales affect the fair value and pricng of derivadve ingiru ments purchassd or sold short by the
Fursd, The investment Managar continuously mordtors the Fund's expoare to interest rate risk and the Fund's cverall
Entarest sansithity on aregular basts,

Cradit Risk

Credit risk reprasents the potential [oss that the Furd would incur if the counterparties or issuers of debt seosites faled
o perform purmsant to the terms of thelr obligations tn the Fund, For exchang e-traded contracts, the exchange acts ans the
oounberparty bo specific ransactions and, therefore, bears the sk of delivery to ond from counterparties of specific
postons The Fund's management dossnot consider that creditrisk relabed to open desivative contracts will hawe material
adwerss offect on the Ananda conditon of the Fend.

‘While both the LS Bankruptoy Code and the Securities inwestor Protection Act of 1610 seek to protect customer property
En the event of a fallure, inschvency or igul datl on of an insthwtion, there [sno cerminty that, In the event of a faflure of an
institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not inour lomsses diee Lo its amets being unmeatable for a pericd
of time, widmately less than fUE recovery of its assets, or both, Becase all of the Fund's cash is In custody with a single
institution, such losses could be significant and could materdally impalr the ability of the Fund to achéewve its investment
cbjective, The Fund is subject to cradit risk to the extant that thisinstitution may be unable to Tulfill its obfigations to repay
amounts owed,
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MUAHAGEMENT [continuwed)

Liguidtny Risk
Irnesbors shauld be aware that the value of Uinits might fall & well 83 rise, Irvedirment in the Fund imeclves 8 degres of rigdk
e can b no amsarancs that the Fund's irvestment objective will be acheved,

That Fund is sepeded to dally repurchass of (ts Urits but management beliaves that the Fund has sufdent resources o
mant the prasent and foresseable nesds of it business cperations and, if necessany, the liquidity to fund repunchases and
achigye @ market pesition appropristely reflectimg & snofler capital base, This positon s monitored confnually by
PR arent o andure that the Fund has the abiling to mest it cbiigations,

At February 28, 20¢1, substantislly al the investments of the Fund were traded in the ower-the-counter market.

Currency Risk

The Furd oids irvestrients denorinated in UBD, which is the Fund's Bmctions and presentational currency, Howsver,
the Fund espects to hedge lapaness Yon, the value of the Fund's net assets atiributable to JPY Class As @ result, the Fund
will ineur gal rigflosees an s forveird foraeign currency sedharge contrscts which ane wied 1o hadge tha IPY Cass nal st
o Japanese Yen, and such gaingflosses are fully dlocated oo JFY Oasse Al auch JPY hedging gainafiosses hove been
raffactad in the tomd returns &8 presentad in the Fnancial Hghlights and are Snduded in redized and unrealized
gairaficssesin the Statement of Dparat ong, Refer to MNote 1 for further details on the Fund®scumendy hedging strategy.

Tha Invvesornen T Manager o iors th Fund®s oerency exposurs on adally basis

Qther Risk

During the waar, the COVID-S cuthresk wins declarad & pandemic by the World Haaslth Omganimtion. The dteation is
dyramic with various dties and countries srcund the world responding in different ways to address the cusheeak, The
rapid development and fluidity of this stuation precludes any pradicion &3 its ultimate impack, which may have a
eontirued sdverss impact on soonomic and merkst conditions and trigger a pariod of global sconamic Sowdown,

Tha Trustes and Imeastrent Mandger are monitong davelopments rdating Bs COVID-19 and are coordinsting thair
operatonal reponss based on exisfng busines continuity plans and on guildance from global hesith cganizations,
relmvant gowernments, and genersl pandermic responss bt practoes,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the norma course of business, the Trustee on behalf of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain a varisty of
repressntations and wisr anties and which proside general indarmnifications. The ganerd indermri lications apply not enly
to the emtent smsch repressntations and waranties are unbrue bat dso may cover third parties such as the Fund's
Adrmindsrater, Auditor o Frestrrent Manager for claims related to the sendces performed for the Fund, The Trustes's
mmimum exposune under amy such sTangerments is unkmnown, @ exposure only aises to fe extent futere daims that
b sl yot cecurred ane rmads sgaing the Trustes, However, based on ixperience, the Trustes expects the dsk of loss o
b ramcte,

EECENT ACCOUNTING PROMCUNCEMENTS

On August 28, 2018, the FASE issued an Accounting Standards Lipdate, ASU Z2018-13, Fair Value Meassurement (Topic 200:
Cisclomure Fromework-Changes to the Dixdogaure Regquirermants for Fair Value Mesurament (A5 2018-127) ASU 2018-13
msdifies the disdosure shjsctive paragrahs of ASC BI0 to sfirinate (1) “at & rinfrmurn” from the pheass “an antity shall
disclose at a minimum® and | 2} other smilar Topen ended™ disclcmsre reguirermenits to promote the appropniate emercise of
discretion by entities, ASU 2018-13 dso eliminanes sad rmodiSes other requirermentswnder ASC B20. The update is affective
for all entities for Bscal years, and interim periods within $hose Escal years, beginning. after Decernber 15, 2018, Early
aoplication is perrnited,

It this G, itis not antidpated that these dhang & will have an impact on the finencal shvbemen 1
SUBSECUENT EVENTS

Mansgemant perfonmed a subsequent swnis reviad up to Rdy &, 2021, which I the date the financial smtemenis were
s alable to be fsusd,

Effectve March 1, 2021 through huty 6, 2021, there were subscriptionsof LED £63,066 and there were redempons of LED
1,543,447 in resprc s of Olass JPY Units, Thare wers disributforsof USD 381, 788 in repect of Class JPY Units
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NEUE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO AINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended February 28, 2021
SUBSECLENT EVENTS [ eentinuad]

Effmcsive March 1, 2021 through July 6, 2021, there wers sbacriptionsof LED 312 583 and thera wers radenpdons ol LED
4,136,706 inrespect of Chass LSO Linits, There were distributions of LSO 258,321 Inrespect of Class S0 Lni s,

There are No othar SENECHNT SANLS 10 reportas they rdane 1 the Fund,
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2020 29
NB
2020 29
78,136,729 76,719,790 8,483,674
72,503 8,017
122,258 123,346 13,640
212,381 23,485
21,990 2,432
1,232,522 136,292
1,978,730 218,808
80,361,262 8,886,348
2,507,965 277,331
87,415 9,666
53,310 5,895
43,324 4,791
41,501 4,589
12,780 1,413
6,724 744
123 14
131,889 14,584
4,347 481
2,889,378 319,507
77,471,884 8,566,841
77,116,043 8,527,492
(3,087,403) (341,405)
3,039,735 336,134
403,509 44,620
77,471,884 8,566,841
5,208,004, 048
519,204 10,031
29,189,271
2,751,993 10.61 1,173
110.58
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NB
2020 29

3,582,433 396,145

3,582,433 396,145

627,790 69,421

627,789 69,421

177,345 19,611

48,292 5,340

24,832 2,746

15,484 1,712

12,704 1,405

3,272 362

16,855 1,864

1,554,363 171,881

2,028,070 224,264

(2,392,925) (264,610)

1,466,342 162,148

(926,583) (102,462)

5,606,512 619,968

3,287,858 363,571

8,894,370 983,539

7,967,787 881,078

9,995,857 1,105,342

110.58
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NB
2020 29
2,028,070 224,264
(926,583) (102,462)
8,894,370 983,539
9,995,857 1,105,342
(1,768,803) (195,594)
(1,291,114) (142,771)
(3,059,917) (338,366)
32,615 2,973,194 328,776
224,384 2,403,235 265,750
254,925 (23,589,948) (2,608,576)
2,186,392 (22,910,038) (2,533,392)
(41,123,557) (4,547,443)
(34,187,617) (3,780,467)
111,659,501 12,347,308
77,471,884 8,566,841
110.58

94/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NB
2020 29
2016 12 16
2012 10 15
2009 a CIMA
2017 22
LLC
CIBC
UFJ PB
FASB ASC

946

GAAP
GAAP
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12

GAAP

2020 29
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2020 29
76,719,790 76,719,790
1,978,730 1,978,730
78,698,520 78,698,520
2020 29
131,889 131,889
131,889 131,889
FASB ASC 740
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78 9,198,347 65 3,782,488
31
18,117,405 83 2,216,201

)
)
)
() ) )

2019 28 64,448,072 47,211,429 111,659,501
2,973,194 2,403,235 5,376,429

(23,589,948)  (22,910,038)  (46,499,986)

(1,768,803) (1,291,114) (3,059,917)

6,220,098 3,775,759 9,995,857
2020 29 48,282,613 29,189,271 77,471,884
2019 28 741,514 4,714,001 5,455,515
32,615 224,384 256,999
(254,925)  (2,186,392)  (2,441,317)
2020 29 519,204 2,751,993 3,271,197
2020 29 92.99 10.61

98/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10.00
10,000
10

2020 29
2020 29 2,507,965

10

2017
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2020 29 MNA
MNA
(O]

Citibank NA 1,936,492 (22,534) 1,913,958
Goldman Sachs 15,136 (7,803) 7,333

Royal Bank of Canada 10,149 (10,149)

State Street Bank And Trust Co. 14,779 (14,779)

Westpac Banking Corporation 2,174 (2,174)
1,978,730 (57,439) 1,921,291

2020 29 MNA
MNA
(©)

Citibank NA 22,534 (22,534)

Goldman Sachs 7,803 (7,803)
Royal Bank of Canada 14,555 (10,149) 4,406
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 32,776 (14,779) 17,997
Westpac Banking Corporation 54,221 (2,174) 52,047
131,889 (57,439) 74,450
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@
2020 29
1,978,730 131,889
2020
1,566,287 3,312,621
0.65
0.30 0.35
2020 29
627,790 2020 29 41,501
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
0.015
15,000 2020
29 15,484 2020 29 12,780
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0.05
2020 29 48,292
2020 29 6,724
0.65
2020 29 627,789
2020 29 87,415
10
180,000
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11
1970
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2020 29

12

13
2020 26
2020 2020 26 60,696
1,262,614 475,520
2020 2020 26 827,780
639,449 330,807

CovID-19

2020 11 2019 COVID-19
() ( )COVID-19

103/192



NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
February 29, 2020
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Asgals:

Ivsestments 5 securites, at walue [cost of USD 78,136, 729)

Casn

Foreign currendy, ot valoe {oos of USD 122 258)

Resceivable for investments seld

Reciivable For Units isswed

Interest receivalie

Unnga sed aparecation ea loneed faneign carrency exchange coatracls
Todal asaets

Liahilities:

Payable for Uails redeemed

Apcrued dabToutors Tees.

iecrued professional fees

Accraied custodan @il sab-adminstratoss lees
Agcraed manegement lees

Acrued rustee fees

Aecrued agent company's fee

Accrued registration Tees

Unrpaoed deprecialaon o lorwasd fameign currendy exchange contracs
Sacraed olher expemes

Todal liabilitses

Nt Asatd Attrilbutable te Unitholder
Anatyiis of Net Assats:

Paid in caginal
Accumulated dstrioution ineeces of net ivestment come

Accumulated net realzed gains on imaestmeents and Toregn currency transactons and foreard

Ty EEChange covlacs

Kt wirialiped 3507 ecilion an irmealmesls 3ad lodegn cusrency i matUon 3nd losward

CUITETCY eRchange conlacts
Mt Assets Attributable 1o Unitholder

Mt Asset Vaheo pr Unit
P Class JPY 5 208,004,048 + 519,204 Units outstand ng)
{USD Class WSD 25,189,271 + 2,751,553 Units cubstanding)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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L&D 76,719,790

72,503

113 346
212 381
21,530
1232522
1978730
B0, 360,262

2,507 365
B7 415
53,310
43,324
41501
12, 7&0

6,724
123
131 883

2 BR9.I7H

D TTATLERL

usD 7116043

{3,087,403)
3039735

A03 509

Jt] TTATLEBL

g

IFY 10,081
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Inwastmant Income:
Interest
Tetal lavestment Fgamne

Expaeiia:
Management fees
Distriairtor's fees
Custod an and sub-adminstrator's fees
Agent company's fees
Predessional feos
Trusbee fees
Transfer agent fees
Regstration fees
Ohver eapenies

Total Cxpenses

Nt Insnestmaent Incomss

Realized ard Unrealiced Gaing/iLasies);
Ry oee] prinires [l )
Imeestrnents in securities
Fareign currency transactions and forward foreign cusrency exchange contracts
et nealized losses
Change inunrealiped sppeeciotica{dege scation)
Irpeestrments in securities
Fareign currency tramsactions and Torward foreign currency exchange contracts
ket chaqge inwarealized sppredation
Kt realized and wirealized gains

Nt incre e in nat assets resulting from aperations.

[157+] SE2 433
3,583.431

627,790
627,789
177,345
452192
24,832
154584
12,704
3372
16855
1,554 163

2028,070

12,302 535)
1,366, 142
26, 583)

5,606,512
3 XE? B56
B B0 170

7967 TR?

UsD 9,905,857

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended February 29, 2020
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Inseriaiis [Dierenid] in Mot Assats fram:

Operations:

Ket investment imgome

Mot realized losses

Kot change ia uneealised agaredaticn

Ket incremse imnet assets resul ting from operations

Distronwtons o Unitholder
1FY Class
LSO Class

Total Distributions

Cagital Transactsons:

Units ssued
IV Class {32,615 Units)
USD Class {224,384 Unis)

Units e med
1PY Class {254,925 Unis)
USDClass {2, 186,302 Units}
Ket decrease in net assets reswting from caipitsl tranaactiom

Tetsl Decrease in Met Asits
Nt Assads:

Beginning al year
End al year

usp 2028070
926,583}

B 594 370

9,995 857

{176 ENI)
11291 114)
13.059.917)

2473194
2403235

(23,589 48]
422.910.038)

(41,123,557)

{34,187 617)

111653501
Usp JTATLERA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial state ments.
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

1, ORGAMIZATION

MNEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund [the “Fund”) is a series trust of the Mikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended unit
trust established by a supplemental trust deed dated Decernber 16, 2016 (the “Supplemental Trust Deed™), under the kaws
of the Cayman Islands. Nikko AM Offshore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 (the
“Master Trust Deed”), under the laws of the Cayman Islands and is beensed with the Cayman klands Monetary Authonty
pursuant bo section 4{1ja) of the Mutual Funds Law (2009 Revision), The Fund commenced operations on February 22,
2017,

Thie Fund's dssets are managed on a day to day basis by Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager”). The Manager
delegates imvestment management duties to Nikko Asset Management Co, Ltd., (the “Investment Manager”). The
Irviestment Manager delegates investment management duties to Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC, (the “Sub-
Investment Manager™). The administration of the Fund is delegated to Brown Brothers Harriman & Co, (the “Custodian”
and “Sub-Administrator”], a limited partnership organized under the lws of the State of New Yark,

The investrnent objective of the Fund is to schieve a mid to long term total return through income and capital appreciation,
The Series Trust shall mainly invest in both investment grade and non-investment grade hybrid securities that are issued by
nan-financial corporate isswers and have been rated by either of Moody's, SEP or Fitch. The highest rating from all three of
these agencies shall be applied to each corporate hybrid security and the average rating of the portfolio shall be BEB-/Baad
o abave.

Corparate hybrid debt securities are structured instrurents that combine both equity and fixed income charactenstie: that
penerally offer a means for issuars to borrow money from investors in return for interest paymaents, Such corporate issuers
may utilize hybrid debt for a variety of reasons, including bolstering their capital levels, lowering their weighted average
cost of capital, diversifying their funding sources and managing credit ratings. Though terms and conditions hawve become
increasingly standardized, the specific characteristics of each instrument (swch as payment conditions, the ratio of debt and
equity-like fisatures, time frames and applicable rates) can vary,

The Series Trust may also invest in fixed and floating rate debt securities, including bonds, issued by governments and
Rowemment related entities.

Derivative Instrurnents will be used for efficient portfolio management andfor investment purposes anly.

The awets of the Series Trust may be held in one or more currencies, and the Series Trust will, in principle, engage in
currency hidging between the currency of denomination of each Class (U5, Dallar for USD Class and Japanese Yen for JFY
Class) and the currency of the investments in the underlying portfolio, provided, howewer, that such hedging for JPY Class
may be performed through the LS. Dollar,

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company [Cayman)
Limited {the “Trustee” and the “Admintstrater”) is named as Trustee of the Fund.

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley PB Securities Co., Ltd to act as Agent Company [the “Agent
Carmpany”) and the Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley P8 Securities Co., Ltd to act as Distributor (the
“Dristributor”) of Units in Japan or such other perion or institution as may be appointed as distributor of the Series Trust by
the Manager from time to tirme.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Fund is an Investment Company that follows the accounting and reporting guidance in FASB Accounting Standards
Codification 946.

Lise of Estimates

The accompanying financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
ther United 5tates of America (U5 GAAPY). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S, GAAP requires
the Fund's management to make estimates and assumptians that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results, includ ing the ultimate amount realized upon the sale of
fair valued investments, could differ fram those estimates and such differences may be significant.
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Batis of Accounting

Security and contractual wansactions are recorded on a trade/contract-date basis. Interest income & recorded on an
effective yield basis, net of any applicable withholding tax. Interest expense and other expenses are recorded an an accrual
basis. Realized gains and losses from security transactions are computed on the basks of the average cost of the securities
sold or coversd. Changes in the valeation of investments are recorded in the Statement of Qperations as wnrealized
appreciation or deprecistion.

Valwation of Investments

Bonds and other debt securities, including restricted securities [other than short-term obligations but including listed
isaues) are fair valued at their last sale price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basis of valuations furnished by a pricing service, use of which has been approved by the Investméent Manager, or if no sale
has accurred, the bid price on the valuation date as provided by brokers who are market makers in the securities. all debr
securities with less than 12 months ta maturity date, in principle shall be fair valeed using an amortized cost effected by an
effective yield accumulated/amortization method to their maturity date with adjustments based on comparisan with
markat prices as required.

In accordance with the authoritatiee guidance on fair value measurements and disdosures under ULS. GAAP, thi Fund
discloses the fair value of its investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation technigues wsed to measure
thir Fair walue. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valuations based upon unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
far identical assets of labilities [Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priarity to valuations based upon unobservable
inputs that are significant bo the valuation [Level 3 measurements), The guidance establishes three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as follows:

o Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical investmants that the Fund
has the ability to access at the measurement date;

= Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are significant and observable for the asset or liability either
directly of indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

= Lavel 3 - Inputs that are significant and unobsenable.

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that market panticipants
use b make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk, Inputs may include price information, spegific and broad
criedit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy & based upon
the lowest level of any input that is signficant to the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what
constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Investrnent Manager. The Inwestrment Manager considers
obsersable data to be market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
praprigtany, and provided by independent sourcis that are actively invohed in the rebivant market, The categarization of a
financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily
correspand to thie Investrent Manager's perceived risk of that instrument.

Invistments whobe values are baded on the guoted market prioes in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1,
waould indude actively traded equities, certain LS. government and sovereign abligations, and certain money market
secufities. The Inwestrment Manager would not sdjust the guoted price for such instruments, even in situstions where the
Fund held a large pasition and a sale could reasonably impact the gquoted price.

Irvestments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on quated market prices,
dealer quotations or altefnative pricing sources supported by abservable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include
Imvestment-grade debt securities, short-term irvestments and forward forelgn cumrency exchange contracts. As Level 2
irvestments include positions that are not traded in active markets and/for are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations
may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on avallable market information.

Investments classified within Lewvel 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infreguently. Level 3
instrumnents would include asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As observable prices are not
avallable for those securities, the Fund would use valuation technigues te derive the fair value,

The nputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with Investing
in those securities.
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Valvation of Investments fcontinuved)

The fallowing table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
level within the valuation hierarchy as of February 29, 2020, Further dassifications of the financial instruments are
presentead in the Portfolis of Investments. There were no movemants between levels during the year,

Aswels at Fair Value Fair Walue at
Livil 1 Lival 3 Liwiel ¥ Febinoncy 29, J020
Faed lncome Securities UsEe = uso TE. 19,790 usp = usp 76,719,730
Forward Foreign Currency
Exchangs Comtracts - 1,978,730 - 1,978,730
Totsl LIS0r = LISD TEAIE.S5 20 LIS0 = s TR.638. 500
Lizbilities at Fair Value Waaeat
Liswiel 1 Lowel 2 L 3 Fibeuiary 39, 2000
Forward Foneign Carrengy
Lachange Contracts LISor - UsD 131,885 UsDh - s 131, &0
Total usc - USE 131 B85 153+ = uUsh 131,559
Fareign Currency Transiation

Assets and liabilities held in currencies other than United States Dollar (“USD" or the “Functional Currency™) are translated
to the Functianal Currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the financial statement date. Income and expenses are
translated at the rate of exchange prevalling at the date on which the income or expense is Incurred. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses arising on foreign currency transactions are included in the 5Statement of Operations in the
period in which they occur.,

The Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates on
investmants from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are induded
with the net realized and unrealized gain or loss from investments.,

Incame Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman lslands, there are no incomes, withhalding, capital gains or ather taxes payable by
the Fund. In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman Iskands, foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and
interest recedved by the Fund. Capital gains derived by the Fund in such jursdictions generally will be exempt from fareign
Income or withholding taxes at source, The Fund intends to conduct its affairs such that it willl not be subject to Income tax
in any jurisdiction. As a result, no provision far income taxes has been made in the finandal statements. Unithalder may be
taxed on their proportionate share of the Fund's tax basis income based an their individ val circumstances,

The Fund follows the authoritative guidance on accounting for and disdlosure of uncertainty in tax positions (Financial
Accounting Standards Board [“FASR") - Accounting Standards Codification 740, which requires the Manager to determine
whether a tax position of the Fund is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing
autharity, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position.
Far tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized in the financial statements is
reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fitty percent likelihood of being realized vpon ultimate settlement
with the relevant taxing authority. The Manager has determined that there is minimal or no effect on the financial
statermients being under this authoritative guidance.

Fanward Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

The Fund may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts 1o hedpe against foreign currency exchange rate
risks on all or a portion of non-USD denominated investrents or for efficient portfolio managemaent purposes. Whan
entering into a forward foreign currency exchange contract, the Fund agrees to receive or deliver a fised quantity of
fareign currency for an agreed-upon price on an agrsed future date. Thise contracts are valued daily, and the Fund's net
equity therein, representing unrealized appreciation/[depreciation) on the contracts as measured by the difference
betwinen thie farward fareign currency exchange rabes at the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates at the
reporting date, is included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. Realzed and unrealized gains and losses are included
inthe Statement of Operations.

These instruments irvobse market risk, credit risk, or both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount recognized in the
Statement of Assets and Liabilitkes, Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their,
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Fornward Fareign Currency Exchenge Contracts [continued)

contracts and from movement in currency and securities values and interest rates, In addition to the class level hedging,
the Fund had realized gains of USD 3,782,488 on 78 forward forelgn currency exchange contracts during the year with an
average notional of USD 9,198,347 and an average term to maturity of 65 days, The Fund abo had realized losses of LISD
2,216,201 on 31 forward foreign currency exchange contracts held at the Class IPY Hedged lewel during the year with an
average national of USD 18,117,405 and an average term to maturity of 83 days.

Cash and Foreign Currency
Cash and foreign currency comprises all currency held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., and avernight and other short

term place ments with other financial institutions,

UNITS

The net assets of the Fund are divided into JFY Class Units and USD Class Uinits. The Units are denominated in Japanese Yen
and United States Dollar. JFY Class Units and USD Class Units are available to an eligible investor who §s any persan,
corporation or entity which is not (i) a citizen or resident of the U.5,, a partnership arganized or existing in the W5, or any
corparation, trust or ather entity organized under the laws of or existing in the US; {ii] resident or domiciled in the Cayman
Islands |excluding any object of a charitable trust or power or an exempted or non-resident Cayman Islands company]; (i)
unable ta subscribe for or hold Units without violating applicable laws, or [iv] a custodian, nominee, or trustee for any
person, corporation or entity described in (i) to (i) abowe.

The Manager may determine to issue one or mare classes of Units of the Fund without prior notice to or written consent of
the Unitholder.

All of the net assets attributable to JPY Class Units and USD Class Units are held by one Unitholder.

Clazs JPY Class USD Taotal Fumd

Ba'ane at F\{'I!d’nl.lr'f'JH. M9 wsh B4, 448072 USD 47,211,429 USD111,659.501
‘Subscriptions daring the year 2973194 2,403,235 5376428
Risdemptions dutsoag thi year [23,559.945) {22.910,03R8) (46,499 556 )
Distritutions i1, TeR. B0 {1291, 104) {3.058.917)
et increase im nel assets resulting From operations 6 220 CAE B ITLING 0,995 85T
Kt Assets ot Febroary 19, 2030 Ush 48 MRI613  USD X0 1R9271  USD ITATLER4
Numizes of Units in issue ot Febeaary 28, 2009 741,514 4,714,001 5455515
Lirwits issueed dusing U year 2615 224,384 256,959
Units redeemied during the yea [354,925) {2,186, 392) [2441.31F
NumBer af Units in Baue at Febeoasry 29, 2000 519 204 2751993 3.271.197
Kot Asset Value per Ut at Febeusry 29, 2000 wsh 9209 LSD 10.61

Subscriptions for Units

UISD Class Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USD 10000 per Unit. JPY Class Units were first issued at an initial
izsue price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. On and after initial dosing day, the minimum initial subscription for USD Class Units per
subscriber is 10 Units or more, and in rultiples of 1 Unit thereafter. The minimum initial subseription far JPY Class Units
per subscriber is 1 Unit or more, and in multiples of 1 Units thereafter,

The Manager may waive of change the minimum initial and additional subscription amounts set forth above in its sole
diseretion from time o time,

Sales Charge
In addition to the subscription price, the applicant shall pay a sales charge calculated at wp to 3% (excluding any tax
applicable) of the purchase price, o the Distributor.

Uit Redemptions

The Fund recognizes redemptions in accordance with the authoritative guidance on distinguishing liabilities from aquity.
Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, Japanese Yen or Units, are recognized as liabikties when each of
the United States Dollar, Japanese Yen and Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed, which
generally may occur either at the time of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal year, depending on the
nature of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
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NEUEB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

UNITS [continued]
Uit Redemptions feon tinued)

reflected as redemptions payable at February 29, 2020, There were USD 2,507,965 of redemptions payable as at February
24, 2020, induded as Payable for Units redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,

Repurchase of Units

Each Unitholder may request a repurchase of Units by the Fund unless repurchases have been suspended by the Manager.
Units will be repurchased daily at the Net Asset Value per Unit as at the relevant Repurchase Day (each Valuation Day, or
such ather day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust). There will be no
repurchase charge on repurchases of Units held over five years.

Compulsory Redemption

In ther @wnt that the Trustes or the Manager shall determing that any Units of any Class of a Series Trust are being held by
or for the benefit of & person who B not an Eligible Investor for such Series Trust ar that such holding would cause the
Trust or the Series Trust to be required to register, be subject to tax or violate the laws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee
ar the Manager has reason to doubt the legitimacy of the source of monies used to fund the subscription or purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reason (which may not be disclosed by the Trustee or the Manager to Unitholder) that the
Trustee of the Manager considers appropriate at its absalute discretion having regard to the interests of the Unitholder of
the relevant Class or the Unitholder of the Series Trust as a whobe, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereof to sell (subject to the provisions described below in the section headed "Transfer of Units®)
such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of such sale, failing which the Manager
may redeem such Units,

Termination of the Fund
Upon termination, the Manager will realize all the assets of the Fund, and after paying out or retaining adequate provision
for all Eabilities properly payable and retaining provision for the casts of the termination, the Trustese shall distribute the
proceeds of that realization to the Unitholder proportionately to their respective interests in the Fund as of the date of
termination of the Fund.

Distributions to Unitholder

The Manager may, in its sobe discretion, declare distributions from June 2017, Distributions will be declared on each
Distribution Record Date and calculated on each Ex-Distribution Date, Distribution Period is a peried commiencing from the
calendar day following the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and including the Distribution Record Date,
The distributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, provided that such amount [if any) declared with
respect to each Class of Units shall only be paid out of the Series Trust's net income, realived and unrealized capital gains
and any distributable funds of thi Series Trust attributable to such Class of Units as determined by the Manager.

The declaration of distributions to Unitholder reduces the Class Lavel Net Asset Value per Unit without any cornesponding
change in the number of Class Level Units per Unitholder, This results in a Unitholder's overall investment in the Fund
biting reduced. In addition, any distributions during a wear which are in axcess of the Fund’s net increase in net assets
resulting from operations results in a portion of the distribution being return of capitall

The amount of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in its sole discretion, and no representation or
Buarantee is made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or any Distribution Period,

Capitaliration

The Het Asset Value per Unit s caboulated for each Dealing Day (each Valuation Day, or such other day or days as the
Manager may from time to time determine in respect of the Series Trust), by dividing the difference in valee betwaeen the
Fund's assets and liabilities (including acerued fees and expenses of the Fund) by the number of Units autstanding.

The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Units wo be issued in the Fund shall be unlimited as the Manager shall
determing and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accounting Standards Codification 815-10-50 requires disclosures about derivative instrumaents and hedging activities. It
reguires that the Fund disclose: a) how and why an entity wses derivative instruments, b) how derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for and ¢) how derivative instruments and related hedged Rems affect an antity’s
financial position, financial perfermance and cash flows,
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

The Fund transacts forward derivative instruments primarily far hedging purposes with each instrument’s primary risk
expasure being foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Fund do not qualify as
hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC §15. The fair value of these dervative instruments is
included in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities with changes in fair value reflected as realized gains/[losses) or net
change in unrealized appreciation/[depreciation] on derivatives within the Statement of Operations (Nobe 2).

The Fund may enter inte an Intemational Swaps and Derivative Assoclation, Inc. Master Agreement [“150A Master
Agresment”) with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The 1SDA Master Agreement B typically
negotiated by the Fund and its counterparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and conditions for all subseguent derivative
transactions. The ISDA Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed to or due from counterparty into a
single net payment if a credit event or default should occur.

The Fund has elected to not offset fair value receivables and payables for derivative contracts on the face of the Statement
of Assats and Liabilities,

At February 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivathve assats by counterparty net of amounts available
for offset under a Master Netting Agreement (*MNA®] and net of any collateral received by the Fund:

Dasrivative Asets Darivativis Mon-ash Cash Hat Amount al
Caunte rparty Sabject ta 8 MNA_ Available for Ditet Callatersld Aecived Callateral Receivd Chirivativa Asiets’
Citan WA Usp 1936492 USD {E2.534) UsD =UsD =Usp 1913958
Go'dman Sachs 15,136 (7.B03) = - 7333
Roya' Bank of Canada 10,149 {10,144} - - -
State Strect Bank Aod Trust Co 14,779 {14,774} - - -
‘Westnac Banking Corporat'an 2,174 £2,174) - - -
Total s 1,978,730 usD {57,439} USD =50 = LS 1,921,291

AL Febrpary 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivative liabilities by counterparty net of amounts available
for affset under & MMA and net of any collateral pledged by the Fund:

Drivathee Derivatives Monecash Cash Het Amount of

Courte Fparty Liakslitins Awailable for Offsat Collateral Pledged Collatoral Fledged Derivativi

Subjuct 1o a MNA Linbilidies: "
Ciiana WA usp 22,534 UsD {E2.534) UsD =UsD =Lsp =
Godman Sachs 7,603 (7.803) = = -
Ry Bank of Cansda 14,555 {10,149} - - 4,406
State Sereet Bank And Trust Co 3T {14,774 = = 17,547
‘Westnac Banking Corporat'an 54,221 £2,174) - - 52,047
Total (11 ] 131,880 USD {57,439} USD - 5D —LsD T4AED

U Mot wmount et the et amount reos ivable fgayabie 1om (he ooantenpaty in the eeent of defadn

At February 29, 2020 the Fund had entered into the following derivatives:

Asset Dervatives 'J"EE Derivatives
Deriwatives Staterment Statement
Naot Accounted for as of Aszels and of Assels and
Hadging insirements Liabilities Location Fair Valua Liabilities Location Fair Valua
Forward Boreign currency  Unanealized appeeciaton Uareal zed degeeciation
exchange contracs o forward fanesgn o looward foneign
{Curremy Risk] Giffificy exe b shi L1,%+] LOTEII0  cufnisficy exdhaaie L1545] 131,889
cankrads cantracts

The effect of derivative instruments on the Statement of Operations for the year ended February 19, 2020

Change in Unrealized
Location of Realined Appreciation or
Deriwatives Not Accounied  Gadn or |Loss) Gain or {Loss | [Depreciation] on
Tor as Hedging Insirumants  on Devivatives on Derivatives Drivatives
Kt real o gain o forward Tareign
Fofwifﬂbf?:g.l'lil#fﬁ'f CUFEnCy eRChange conlracls
encheage contracls change = undedli pid aparecation [deprecation)
{Currency Risk) on farmard Toreign currency exchange contracts USD 1,566,287 USD 1312621
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

MAMAGEMENT FEES

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Serles Trust a management fee of a total of 0.655% per annum
[0.230% per annum in respect of fee for the Manager and the Investmant Manager and 0.35% per annum in respect of fee
for the Sublrvestment Manager) of the Net Asset Valve acorued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable
manthly in arrears. In addition, the Manager is also entitled to be reimbursed out of the assets of the Saries Trust for any
expenses incurred by it in the proper perfarmance of its powers and dutles as permitted under the Master Trust Deed.
During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Manager earned fees of USD 627,790 of which USD 41,501 i still
outstanding as of February 29, 2020

The Manager will pay the fees of the Investment Manager out of its fees. The Investment Manager will pay a fee to the
Sub-Investment Manager out of the fee received by the Investmant Manager.

CUSTOMAN AND SUB-ADMIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The Fund has a custody and accounting agreéemaent with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co, (the “Custodian” and “Sub-
Administrator) for which the Custodian receives a fee calculated and paid monthly based on total assets and transaction
wolurmae.,

The Custodian and Sub-Administrator is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust an adminkstration fee
[intluding transfer agent fee) calculated based on the Met Asset Value as at each Valuation Day at the following annual
rate:

= 0,08% up to [and including) USD 250 millien;

= 0.07% up to and including) LSD 500 million;

= DUDES awver LISD SO0 millian.

Such administration fee is payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the minimum annual fee of USD E0,000. In addition,
the Custodian and Sub-Administrator i also entitled to receive customary safekeeping fees and transaction charges, All
out-of-pocket expenes of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator shall also be borne by thi Series Trust.

TRUSTEES FEES

Thee Trustes is entitled to receivie out of the assets of the Series Trust a combined fiee at the rate of QUD15% per annurm of
the MNet Asset Valuee accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable semi-annually in arrears, subject to a
minimum annuwal fee of USD 15,000, During the year ended February 29, 2020, the Trustes earned fees of USD 15,484, of
which USD 12,780 & still outstanding as of February 29, 2020,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The Agent Company is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0L05% per annum of the
Niet Assiet Valve sccrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears, During the year
ended February 29, 2020, the Agent Company earned fees of LISD 48,292, of which USD &,724 is still outstanding as of
February 29, 2020.

DISTRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distributar is entithed to receie out of the adets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.65% per annurm of the Net
Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, #ach Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears, During the year endad
February 29, 2020, the Distributor earned fees of USD 627,789, of which USD 87,415 is stil outstanding as of
February 29, 2020,

OTHER FEES AND EXPENSES

The costs and expanses in connection with the establishment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the establishment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing any prospectus of
explanatory brochures requined, are estimated to amount to approximately USD 180,000, Such costs and expenses will be
amortized within the first five (5) financial years of the Series Trust unless the Trustee decides that some other method
shall be applied. The Administrator receives USD 1,500 per annum for FATCA f CRS compliance services.
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund’s activities expose i to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, interest rate risk, and currency
risk), eredit risk and liquidity risk

Market Risk
All investments present a risk of loss of capital The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
securities and other financial instruments.

The Fund's Investment management process is described in Note 1. The primary determinant of the Fund®s ability to meet
its objective of mid to long term capital appreciation while eaming income & dependent of the performance of the
Irvestment in the Underbyging Fund.

The Fund's investrment management process |s described in Note 1. The Fund's overall market positions are monitored on
a daily basis by the Fund's Investment Manager.

The value of the Fund's investments is affected by a number of factors, including but not limited to, changes in the wider
econamy, financial and currency markets, forelgn currency exchange rates, interest rate movements and the credit ratings
of debt issuers,

The Fund may enter into forward foreign currency exchange contracts which to varying degrees regresent a market risk in
axcids of the amount reflected on the Fund™s Statement of Asets and Liabilities, The notional amount of the contract
represents the extent of the Fund's participation in these financial instruments. Market risks associated with such contracts
arise due to the possible moveménts in foreign exchange rates underying thise instruments,

Other market and credit rigks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid market for the contracts, that the change
in the value of the contract may not directly correlate with changes in the value of the underlying currencies or that the
counterparty to a forward contract defaults on itt obligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Fund's
expasure to loss due to counterparty nan-performance on open forwards forelgn currency exchange contracts is limited to
the unrealized appreciation inherent in such financial instruments which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Liabélities.

Interest Rate Risk

The Fund's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Fund's investrents in debt securities contracts,
Interest rate fluctuations may also affect the fair value and pricing of derivathve instruments purchased or sold short by the
Fund. The Irvestmant Manager continuously monitors the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk and the Fund’s averall
Interest sensitvity on a regular basis.

Credit Ritk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Fund would incur If the counterparties or issuers of debt securities falled
to perforen purisant to the terms of their obligations to the Fund, For exchange-traded contracts, the exchange acts as the
counterparty to specific transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery te and from counterparties of specific
positions. The Fund’s managerment does not consider that credit risk related to apen derivative contracts will have material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the Fund.

‘While bath the LL5. Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of a failure, insalvency or liquidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an
Institution that has custody of Fund assets, the Fund would not incur lesses due to its assets being unavailable for a period
af tirme, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or bath. Becawse all of the Fund's cash is in custady with a single
Institution, such losses could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Fund to achieve its Investment
objective. The Fund & subjiect to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfill its obligations to repay
amounts owed,
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NEUBE CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2020

FINAMCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT [eontinuwed]

Liguidity Risk
Irvestors shauld be aware that the value of Units might fall as well as rise. Investmant in the Fund invahoes a degres of risk;
there can be no assurance that the Fund’s investment objective will be achieved.

The Fund is exposed to daily repurchase of its Units but management believes that the Fund has sufficient resounces to
maet the present and foresesable needs of its butiness operations and, i necessary, the Bguidity to fund repurchases and
acheve a market position appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position B monitored continually by
managemaent to ensure that the Fund has the abilty to meet its obligations.

At February 29, 2020, substantially all the imvestments of the Fund were traded in the over-the-counter market.

Cwrrency Risk

The Fund primarily hokds investments denominated in USD, which is the Fund's functional and presentational currency.
Heoweaver, the Fund expects to hedge Japanese Yen, the value of the Fund's net assets attributable to JPY Class, As a result,
the Fund will incur gains/losses an its farward forelgn currency exchange contracts which are used to hedge the JFY Class
net assets to Japanesa Yen, and such gains/losses are fully allocated to JPY Class. All such hedging gains/losses have bean
reflected in the total returns as presented in the Financial Highlights.

The Investrnent Manager monitors the Fund®s currency exposure on a daily basks,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGEMNCIES

In the normal course of business, the Trustee on behalf of the Fund may enter into contracts that contain a varlety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The general indemnifications apply not only
to the extent such representations and warranties are untrue but abo may cover third parties such as the Fund's
Adrministrator, Auditar of Investrent Manager for claims related to the services performed for the Fund. The Trustee's
maximum exposure under any such arrangements is unknown, as exposure only arises to the extent future claims that
have not yet accurred are made against the Trustee. However, based on experience, the Trustes expects the risk of loss to
be remate.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent events review up to June 26, 3020, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued,

Effective March 1, 2020 through June 26, 2020, there were subseriptions of USD 60,696 and there were redemptions of
S0 1,262,614 In respect of Class IPY Units. There were distributions of USD 475,520 in respect of Class JPY Units.

Effective March 1, 2020 through June 26, 2020, there were subscriptions of USD 827,780 and there were redemptions of
USD 639,449 in redpect of Class USD Units. There were distributions of USD 330,807 in respect of Class USD Unies,

COVID-12

On March 11, 2020 the World Health Organization declared the coronavirut disease 2019 (“COVID -197) a pandemic.
Uncertainty remains around (i) the length of the disruption, and (i) the impact of the COVID=19 on global markets.

There are no other significant events to report as they relate tothe Fund,
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2021
121,307,727.64 13,414,208,522
63,046,991.53 6,971,736,323
58,260,736.11 6,442,472,199
1,977,494
411,695
10.68 1,181

10,012
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 622,387 3,938,928 435,567
2,851,607 315,331 3,190,108 352,762
70,125 7,754 71,250 7,879
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
148,200 16,388 146,480 16,198
79,840 8,829 124,271 13,742
1,643,547 181,743 2,462,391 272,291
1,871,587 206,960 2,733,142 302,231
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
6,198,530 685,433 3,987,144 440,898
6,678,530 738,512 4,467,144 493,977
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
17 2020
129332
110.58
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2020 31
2020 2019
5,628,385 622,387 3,938,928 435,567
2,851,607 315,331 3,190,108 352,762
70,125 7,754 71,250 7,879
8,550,117 945,472 7,200,286 796,208
1 0.111 1 0.111
1 0.111 1 0.111
8,550,118 945,472 7,200,287 796,208
148,200 16,388 146,480 16,198
79,840 8,829 124,271 13,742
1,643,547 181,743 2,462,391 272,291
1,871,587 206,960 2,733,142 302,231
480,000 2020 31
2019 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
6,198,531 685,434 3,987,145 440,898
6,678,531 738,512 4,467,145 493,977
8,550,118 945,472 7,200,287 796,208
17 2020
129332
110.58

122/192



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31
2020 2019
19,213,975 2,124,681 22,335,065 2,469,811
19,213,975 2,124,681 22,335,065 2,469,811
(1,183,017) (130,818) (1,276,979) (141,208)

(15,585,538)  (1,723,449) (19,056,557)  (2,107,274)
(15,764) (1,743) (20,971) (2,319)
(228,510) (25,269) (161,343) (17,841)
(17,012,829)  (1,881,279) (20,515,850)  (2,268,643)

2,201,146 243,403 1,819,215 201,169
10,240 1,132 (53,798) (5,949)
10,240 1,132 (53,798) (5,949)

2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220

2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220

2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220

110.58
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2020 31
¢ >y >y ¢ >y > c > o D
480,000 53,078 2,221,727 245,679 2,701,727 298,757
1,765,417 195,220 1,765,417 195,220
31 480,000 53,078 3,987,144 440,898 4,467,144 493,977
2,211,386 244,535 2,211,386 244,535
31 480,000 53,078 6,198,530 685,433 6,678,530 738,512
110.58
2020 31
2020 2019
2,201,146 243,403 1,819,215 201,169
10,240 1,132 (53,798) (5,949)
2,211,386 244,535 1,765,417 195,220
339,626 37,556 1,074,174 118,782
(861,555) (95,271)  (1,182,743) (130,788)
1,689,457 186,820 1,656,848 183,214
1,689,457 186,820 1,656,848 183,214
3,938,928 435,567 2,282,080 252,352
5,628,385 622,387 3,938,928 435,567

110.58
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2020 31
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
IFRS 16 2019
2020 31 2019 31
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JPY GBP SGD
2020 31
2019 31 10
2020 2019
JPY 36,000 54,000
GBP 76,000 95,000
SGD 15,000 56,000
EUR 2,000
2020 31 2020
5,628,385 5,628,385
2,851,607 2,851,607
70,125 70,125
148,200 148,200
79,840 79,840
1,643,547 1,643,547
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2019 31 2019

3,938,928 3,938,928

3,190,108 3,190,108

71,250 71,250

146,480 146,480

124,271 124,271

2,462,391 2,462,391

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
@ ®) ®

) ¢ ¢ C
4,939,036 686,456
2,265,335 991,951

6,464,511 179,247
1,801,198 137,386
115,458 7,001
16,010,138 179,247 1,822,794
2019 31 2019 31
2019 31 a
@ o) ®

) ¢ ¢ ¢
4,735,296 339,775
9,478,941 1,253,147
2,634,320 307,671
2,071,148 549,065
136,852 12,733
19,056,557 2,462,391

(a
(b
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MNIEKO® AM GLOBAL CAYALAN LTD
CONSOLIDATEDRD STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT M MARCH a0
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e

15935008
1 1940,108
71.2%

TAML2EE

T200,256

146480
124,271
246230

Pste 200
Asseis
Cmrrend Assets
Cash aid cash equivalmts -1 LG b
Accoim s Fecervabile 2 BRY GOT
Accrued moome end propaid expense T0125
Tolal Currenl Asaels 8,550,117
Total Mon- Currenid Assels
Tolal Assels ] 8.550,117
Liabilities aml Eqisity
Current Liabilities
Accruod expenscs amd deferred income 5 148 2040
Accoumls payable THEAD
Amounis peyable 10 group underiakngs L 1543547
Tatal Current Liabilities 15715587

2733142

Equlty

Caplital and Reserves Atiribuiable to Equity
Halders of the Company

Share caplital (31 par value, 450,000 shares
sl horered, 480600 shares =med and AR WA
odtstan<mg st 31 March 2020 and 1019

A8 0

1587144

4467144

Retained earmings 6,198,530
Total Edquity 6.675 430
Total Liablkites and Equity 5 8580117

7200256

The anaeved noles from 1 bo % Fomm an integral pan of these fancial statements.

The financial stabements on pages & Lo |7 ware approved by tbe Board of Directors on & Aogust 2000 ancd asthocesed for s and

sigreed on s hehalf by

Company regisered nuember: 179332
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MNIKED AM CLOBAL CAYAMAN LTD
COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

Mok 2030 w9
Asaris
Currenl Assels
Cash and cash equivalents ] 5628 383 © ER LR
Accounts recenable 2R 607 3,150 108
Axenaed inooene and propasd exponss T0125 71,250
Total Curienl Asiéls 555,117 TR0, 86
Mom - Currenl Assels
Investmen i subsidiary 3 | 1
Taotal Mon-Curvent Assels | 1
Total Assets 3 8550118 § T.RMLIET
Liabilities aml Eqity
Cirrent Lialilities
Accraed expenses and deferred mcone L1 4820 5 148 480
Accourts payable Tgan 12437
Amoints payable to group andenakings & 1.643 547 2462391
Total Current Liabdlijes 1,571,587 2,733,142
Equisy
Capital and Feserves Abribatatde o Equlty
Halders of the Company
Share capilal {31 par value, 420,000 shares mthorized,
A0, shares tssped and oulstsnding # 31 Mardh AR D ABT M)
2000 and 2009)
Retained eamings 6,198,531 3087045
Taolal Exuity 6678 53] 4467, 145
Total Liabikities and Equity 3 580,118 3§ T 200,287

The amnemied notex from 1 1o 8 form an mlegral pant of thess fmndcsl dalonmis.

The finuncisl statements on peges & Lo |7 were approved by ibe Board of Directors on & Aogust 20030 and ssthorised for isase and
signeed on its bohalf by

B tia]
W=t A

Company registered member: 129352
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MIERG AN GLOBAL CAYMAN LTI

ETATEMENT OF COMSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR EXNDED 31 MARCH 1020

Olpratiingg Hevenises
Investment management and adviscry fees fram third partics

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Sub-advisary fees with thind parties
Sub-advisory fees with group undertakings
Adwchit fees
(e operating and adminisirative expoises
Total oporaling exponscs

Operating Profit

Oilser [neome / (Expenses)
Cither ncome{expense), Net foreign echange gain (loss)
Total other expenses

Profit Before Incoane Tax
Income tax expense

Profil atftributabde o equlty holders of the parent

Cether Comprehensive lncome for the year
Total Compreliensive Incame for e vear

All the Group's operalins are chssifiod & continusng.

The anmeved mobes from 1 1o 8 Form an anlegral pan of these fmncial statememts.

Noke
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2020 2014
19213972 11335063
19213975 335065
{1 AB3.00Th (1,276,975

(15585538 {1 056.257)
(15, 764) 20571
CXEE 51000 (161 388}
(17,00 2,55 (20,51 5.850)
2.201,144 1815212
10,240 (3,758}
10,240 (53,790
2211346 1,765,417
2211384 1765417
22011384 17685417
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MIEED AM CGLOBAL CAVAAN LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1020

Note {”,u':’l; ':;".‘r'r'.'lf:‘ Total
Balunce at | April 2014 T Wiooh 8 2231ET s rouicrt
Net profit . 1765417 [I6sALT
Dividend pibd 5 i :
Balunce at 31 March 2619 5 W00 8 39sTidd s ademau
Nt prefit : 2211386 2211386
Dividend paid ;
Balance a1 31 March 2020 5 w000 5 Ges 5 GeTSI0

Thie anmeved moles from 1 ba % form an integral pant of these finwncial statements
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MNIEK® AM CLOBAL CAYAMAN LTD
CONSOLIPATEDR CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1020
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Ml 200 Fo 0 L
Cash Fhows from Gperating Activities
Operating Profit g 2200146 1519215
Addfusdmenis for
el foreign exchmnge loss 10,340 {53,748
Operational cash flows before movements in working 2371386 165417
capital
Chamges In operaiing ssaets and labilites
Diecrease | (imcresse) in recenables IAHED6 1,074,174
(Decrcase) | Increase in payables (B61_.555) (1.182,743)
et Cash Ceneraled from Operating Actlvitfies 1,689 457 1,655,548
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Dividends pakd -
et Cash from Flmamcing Activitles -
Mol Increase [m Cash and Cash Equivalends 1,689 457 1,655, 548
Cash md cush equivalonix, beginming of the yoar 1058 98 2R 00
Cash and Cash Equivalents. End of the Year -1 X625 88 1,508 928

Thie anmexed modes from 1 to % form an integral part of these fencie] shabements.
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EXDED M MARCH 1029

Naote 1= Genernl Infornoiion

Nikka AM Global Covman Lid the Company”™) snd fis subsidiary g ether “the Oroup™) are imcomorsied @ d domialed m the
Cayman Islamds. The wddress of the registered office is PO Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Churdh Street, Grand Cayman,
Cayman slands. The peincipal activities of the Group snd Company durimg e Year were the provision of mvestiment advice and
invesiment management services bo thind paribes and other group menbas. These pon-dawory finsncial aaements have been
propared o agd the prepartion of consalidated financial $alonmis for the intomeedinle parent company_

Note ! — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The principal accounting palicies adopled are st out below,

Hasls of preparation

Thie Group and Companys financial statemenis have been prepared i accordamos with Inlem atienal Fisancil Reponing Standards
as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as sdopted by the EU) and [FRIC interpretations applicsble fo companies reporting
mniber IFRS. Ax ml 31 March 20200 the Compuey bad adopted all IFR S @nd mlerpretations that had been i sased by the Intomational
Accounting Stamdands Bosnd ("LASET) and Imtemations] Financial Reporting Intapretations Committes (“IFR1C), and endorsed
by the EL. The accounting policies et out below bave been appdicd consistenily 1o all periods presented m these financial
statenments. IFRSs comprise accounting sandards saed by the LTARE snd its predocessor body as well as interpretations fssued by
the IFRIC and its predecessor bady.

1 preparing s set of fifnoal Qalemnenls, he Comipany prepared plasble downsde soendfros sich as redudlon i freveniies
due 1o ghobal market declmes reaalting from the pasdemic. Management is satisfied tht the resuis of these scenanios supports the
going conoem baxis of preparation.

Basls of consolidation

Subvachiarres are entitics conlrodled by the Group. Control exists when the Group bas the power 1o govern the financial snd operating
policies of an enlity 0 as 10 obtain beneffls from its activilies, In assessing contral, the Group takes into considertion potential
valing rights that sre carently exercisable. The aoquisition dale is the dale on which control is irmsferred 1o the soguirer, The
financial stalemsents of subsidiarics are inchided m the conselidaed finmeial stabensemis from the date thal control commienoes
wnlil the dale that control cexses. Losses applicable to the non-conirolling inlerests in 3 subsidiary are sllocmted to the nom-
comtrolling milereds evan if doing o caises the non-controlling interess to bave a deficil balasee.

ew seoounding standards adopied
IFRS 16 Liexse Accounting 14 dfective from | Jauasy 2019, The comgany has so bases and therefoee the aandarnd has no elfoc
o e company”s financial stalements.

Measurenent convention
The financial gstements bave been prepared under the hidonical oo convention

Esdlenates aied asamplions

The preparution of financial dalements requires managemenl to make edimabes md asasmplions that affect the wmounts reported
fior assicts and Habitkes as s the balance sheet date snd e senounts reponted for revenues snd enpenses during the vear. The mature
of gst imation mesns that actual oubcomes could differ from those estimates. The sssumptions snd edimates, which are continuoushy
reviewed, are based on past experience arwd other factors, inchading expeciations regarding likely developments in the futare. Al
31 Bdarch 2020 sed 2019 there wers no mutenial cdmales of sssumplions.

Accounts receivable

Accoiints peceivable melude amounts due for mamagemenl, advisory amd performance Tees and ansounts due from cugomens and
athers. All accounts receivable sre repavable on demand or within one yesr. They are recorded in the balance sheet at codl, redisced
by appropoiate allowmoes for ctimated imecoverabile smounds, and they ane mieresd bearng.

Accounts payable

Avccounts paysble mchide smounts due for subsmbdismy services nd parformance fees and amonts due 1o vendors @nd oltsers.
Al acconinds payable are classafied according 1o the substance of the contractual amangonm! eeioied mto. They are pajable on
demmnil or within one year and are reconded on the balance dheet at cosl, Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured,
inleredt free and hanve mo Fioed Lermas of repayment

Cashy aned cash equivalents

ash and cash cqaivmlents comprse aish in banks and in hand end short dem deposils with an orgimal matenty of three months
o less and forelgn asrencics bedd by the Group and Conspany, For the puspeses of the cash flow statensent, cash el cash
equivabants conssst of cash and cash equivalents 25 defined sbove, net of cotstmeding bk overdrafts.

Operating revenses

Operaling revenues includé comniisssns and invedmenl mamgemen], invedmenl i.dﬂsn'y and peerf o fees. Oy
revenues ane metsaned ol the Fair value of e consideraison recerved o receivable Tor sarvices |.I'm-.~dt-|.l=1 Ih:nnrmd I:{l.lh:i'ﬂf
busmess, et of discounts, il fees, VAT manid other sales refated taxes,

IFES 15, Revenise from Comtracts with Customers replaced [AS 18 Revense and introdaced & five e approads 16 fevenue
recognition; 1) identifying the contract with the cudiom ar; inp Ldﬂ:l'l'}mg the ]'ufmm obligaisons; iii} identify the comtract price
I associted revenoe, ivh allocate the consadaoralion 1o the relevant porfs ¢ obligations, and %) recognising the revenue as the
performance ebligations are safisfied,
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Thie Company has applied [FRS 15 retrospectively, bad has determined that dhere is no adpustmeni 1o the retamed camings a5 o |
Agril 2008, Compantive information has not bean sffected snd therefore no restatement is required.. The Company hasunderiaken
a review of its contmcts with customeers and concluded thal there tsno impadt on the wary in which it recognises its revenucs asno
clemnend of e revenue relles on estimates or B subgeet 10 reversal of significant restaicment.

Commisgons and mvestment managonant and advisory fees and sssocialed charges are rocogrised when the sorvioes concomed
are rendered. Irvesiment management and advisory fets are caleulated 45 aparcentage of asses under managemeanl. Commissons
are recognisod on @ rade dale basis, caboulated on o percentage of the sike. Porfformumoc focs are recognised i the paried in which
Ehey beconte dad and collecsble.

Operatlng expenses
Operaling expanses are sccounted for when they become payable

Dividends
Edquity dividends to the sharcholbder of the Group are recognised as u liability & the period during which they are declared and
appraved,

Foreign carremcies
The finctional and presontalional currency of the Growp and Comgasy i US dollars (5).

Trans&ctions in cusrencies othear than US doltars are reconded o1 the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the imnssations
Al cech balance sheet dafe, mmdary assds md lisbililies that are demomineted in forcign onmoncics sre retrmmsbabed af the mies
provailing on ke balmee sheel date. Mon-monetary assets and lisbilities carried a8 fuir value thal sre denominated m Foroign
currencics arc transiabed sl the rales prevailing at the dabe when Fair valae was delermined. Cains and losses ansing on reiranslation
are included in met profi or Joss for the perdod, eccept for exchange differences arising on non-monetary ssscts and liabilities where
the chamges in fuir vahae are recogoised dircctly inogaily.

Finamncisl indrumenls

IFRS 9. Financial Instruments replaced the classification and measurement contaimed in 1AS 3% Financial Instrumests: Recommition
anwd Measurement (1A% 39), In accordance with IFRS 9, the Company’s financial assets have been reclassified af amodised cost,
Taie value through cther comprehensive ineome of Far value tirough prolit or ks, The Company bas applicd IFRS # retrespectively,
with the Etention of including sy required adjustment 1o retained camings 25 3 | Apnl 2005 Comparstive mformation bas nol
been resated,

Thie vast majority of the Comgasy’s financial mstruments are cash and receivables which are messured af mmonised cost.

Followiag the Company's adoplion of IFRS 900 1 Apeil 200% ihe Company his evaluaied potential crodi Joses on 3l fnanaal
nsets Lhat are meenamred 8 mmortized cost. Faclors considered im determinmg whether o defanl is likely or posdble inclode whether
a pryment s overdue (and the lmgth of that ponod), sny known deterioration in the oredst quality’ of o clientGounterpaty or other
ismmes that coull sdversely affect 8 client’s'counterparty’s credit quality,

For financial assets where there i no known isaves affedting crodit quality, expooted onedil lesses are acalculated based on the bosass
that are expected tobe inourmed over o rollmg twelve-moeith peri od. Given the natuse of the Company's fimncial assets {i.e. mostly
cash l bank), there is & very bow credit ridc. The Company is also considering the use of money markel funds o increase
diversificatsom and further reduce credit risk

For any financial asscts where the contractual paymsent is moce than 30 days past doe. the defaull posilion is 1o axaeme an increise
in eredil sk However, defaalt levels in the padt have besn immatenial snd there were po foe receivaliles past die asat 31 Mafch
H2.

Invesimends in subsidiaries
Invedments im subsddiaries are stabed i tee parenl company®s bakande sheet ul cosd less any provigions for impammmil

Note 3 - Investment in Subsidiary
COMPANY

Ar 31 March 2000 and 31 March 201% ithe Company had an Evesiment of 31, In the opinion of the directors, the Companys
investment is not impaired, Details of the investment are as follows.

Sumbser, class and

Country of perceniaze of dhares
Invesler Incorpor ation Frincipal sctivity held b the Company
Cayinan 1 O share
PR AR oy | LI Islunds Ky e o 51, 100%

Note 4 — Taxation

Al 31 March 2020 and 3019, the tax rate applicalde to the Gromip and the Company's profils i (# becanse thore i no s levied
an Cayman kshinds companies.
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Mote 5 - Financial Risk Factors

The Group and Company’s financial instramsents comprise cash mvd cash equivalents and receivable and payable balances thal
artse from i1s daily operalions. All cash and cash equivalnts are carmied al ool which i considened o approvinmte to Fair vahse
b 1o the shor term maturity of these financial mamments, The main risks associated with the Group snd Company’s financial
asscte and Habilities s st out below;

Credie risk

Credit nisk = defned as the nsk of ol b due o o counterparty’s faihire o honour its obligation principally in rolation 1o
tramsctions where the Growp of Company provides goods o services on deferred terms and where it invesds or doposils amplus
cash, The Groap or Comgany do nol believe that they are materially exposed to credit nisk ns its smbes debfors are managed group
fimds amd therefore managomant end performance fecs receivable are govemod by its agreements with these fimds. To mitigate
anmy resadual risk of these aweta failing to be deliverad. the Greap and Company ensure that the terms of these spreements in
relation to payments of | & % mnd per ¢ Fres are adbvered o by moniloring its 3ged debtor analysis against the sgreed
servioe bevel agreamants.

The Group and Company sdopls the policy of dealmg with cadtomens of sppropmate credit history. For olber fimancial asets, the
Croanp vl Comgpany adapts the policy of dealimg with finaneial inituisons snd olber counterpantics with high credit ratings. There
are no financial assets pasl dus amd £ or enpaired 258 31 March 2020 a0 2019, Tradk recervables are due o leasl quarterly, sad are
mormally seitled within 30 days of their due dale. There ane no overdue trade reoonvables ot the balmot shod date.

Further, with regand o band: doposits, the Group mnd Compay only depessits moncy with approved comterpartses on agroed fams

Mar ki risk

Mwrket risk {or systemic risk) is defined as that risk which & common to an entire class of assels or liabslitics whereby their walse
an Miduale simply bocuse of ooonomic changes of othar ovents thal smpad large potions of the mwkd. The Group and
Company do pot believe that they are exposed o material market risk as the assets the Group and Company mamage are held by
ared o the benefit of fumd hodders through sepamle lezal entitics.

Currency risk

Cusrency risk iz definod as the nisk that the vabae of Group or Company assets md labilities denomisnated in currencies other than
the functional aerency of the Group or Company will change in value dae 1o movements in foreign exchange rates. The Group
and Company are exposed 1o cumency risk misng from vanions currency exposures, primarily with resped to the Japaness Yen
IV, Sterling Pound (SBP) and Singapore Dollar {3000, The Oreup and Company™s fee income i3 received mainly in USD and
JEY, A 31 March 2020 and 2009, had these comenci¢s strengthenedweakened by 10% againg the USD with all other vanshles
mchuding tax mate being held constant, the Group and Company's prafil befiore tux for the fnancisl yoar would have boen
Bigheeribower ms @ sl of currency transkalion losscsipains on the ranainmg cusrency denomisated cash balances, trade receivables
e pqyiilﬁ; bwy the below amounts.

Currency 2020 2009
(Rounded 1o nearest § thousandy
Y 5 3,000 3 54,000
GEP T, (e 05 M
20D 15,000 R1ALLT
EUR 2,060 .

Liquidtity risk amd Mnancial solvency risk

Liquadity risk is defined as the risk thet the Group or Compmy will not be sble to meeel its financial obligatins as they fll due
The Group and Company’s appresch 1o managing this risk B b enaare thal il has saffcent Hguidity to nseet i3 Habilndes when
e, both umder nonmisl amd sressed conditions

Capital managemeni
The Group and Comijeey capital position i% momilored on an ongomg bass 1o owsre that i is adequate. Thioe are no extomally

impidd capital requiremicnts.

Falr Yalue of Financlal Ingrumenis
The fair values of fimncial assels and fiancial Babilitics that are eded in active markets are based on qeoled market prices o
deaber price quodations. For all other financial insfruments, the Group ddamine fir valies usng other valistion tedmigaes.

For financial instnaments that trade mifrequently and have little price transparency. fair value is less obgective, and requires varying
degrees of judgement depending oo liquidity. conceniratim, uncetainty of markel factors, pricing assumglions and ofher nisks
affecting the specific instrument.

The tehle below apalyees finmncal msnaments. into a fair value hiemrchy based on the vabaation techmique used 1o debermeine fair
value

& Level 1 quoled prices funadp sted) in netive markels for sdendicnl niets or liabilities

® Level 20 inguits other than quoted prices included withim Level 1 ths are observable for the sssel o lisbility, either direcly
(i.e.. a5 prices) or indirectly {i.e., derived from prices)

®  Level 3t dmpuls for the mesel of liability that are nol based on observable mket data (unobservable mgauls),
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Year ended 3 March 2428 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal 2620
Ameli 5 3 5 5

Cash wed cash exquivalent LH18385 54628385
Accomls receivable TR51.607 2R51.607
Acerued meome and propaid expense 0125 oS
Lintsdlithes

Acerued expense and defomed imcome 148 X0 148 1)
Acdoumls payable TR0 TREM
Accoimls payabile 1o groap

- I . 16435407 L 1683 54T
Yoear ended 3 March 2009 Leved | Lawe] 3 Larvel 3 Tatal 3015
Asets H H 5 H

Cash wxd cash equivalms 1938508 - 1958938
Acooumnls receivable 090,108 - 3090108
Acernad meome and prepaid expense 71250 71250
Llubsilfibes

Acerued expense and deferred income 146480 146,480
Accoumlis payable 124271 124271
Accounts payable o groap

dndentikings 1AEL39] - 1462391

Al finamcial assds and lmbslitics we camod al histoncl cost. The fasr valuces of all finmncial msds and labglilios are smlar o
their carryimg vahpes owing to their short kema nasture.

Note 6 - Helated Party Transactions
Transections between the Group and Company snd relsted pariees are dischsed below:

Debilor as Credilor asal
Operating Operating at 31 March 31 March
Yoenr emded 31 March 2020 Hevenues Expemses (n) P (] 202 ihy
Nikko Aseet Mmagomml Amencas, Inc. 5 = 3 4 939 085 5 = 5 686,458
Hikko Assct Management Europe Lid. - 1,165335 - #1551
NWikko Assel Mmnagemant Co, Lid. - 6464 511 179,247 .
Nikko Assel Mamagement Asia Lid, - 1 500,198 - 157384
Hikko Aszel Mmagemanl Hong Kong - 115458 - 7000
Talsl 3 & 1601038 5 179,247 5 181
Drelslor as Credlilor as an
Operating Opirating al 31 March A1 March
Year ended 31 March 2019 Hevenies Expeises (a) 2019 (b} 2019}
Hikko Assel Mmnagemanl Americas, [nc. i = 3 4, 735,000 5 = -1 A5DTTS
Wikl Asset Management Europe Lid, - SATRSM - 1253, 147
Nikko Asct Mmnagemant Co, Led. - A3 30 = 07 671
Mikko Asset Management Asia Lid - TOTLE4R - S40.063
Nikko Asscl Managemant Hong Keng . 136,852 . 12.733
Talzl 3 3 I OEG55T 3 5 AT
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{a) Operaling experses paid (o relsted parties we payable under mvestment management agreements and are for fland
management servaces,

(b} The amounts cutdmding are unsecured and will be setibed in cash, No gusrmtees have been given or received. No provisions
laavie boan made for doubtful delbis in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

Nikko Assct Mmnzgomonl Amaricas, Ing., Mikke Asscl Management Ewrope Lid., Nikko Asect Managemond Asia Led md RNikke
Asud Management Hong Bong arc [ellow subssdiarics. Mikko Assa Managanant Co, Lid bx an imdiceet sharchalder of the
aforementioned subsdiaries,

Note T - Ultineie Holding Company

Thie Greap is & wholly owned sobsidiary of Nikko AM Global Holdings Lid, (s smmediste parent mndeniaking, a company which
is registered im England end Wales.

In the opinion of the direcbors the altimate parent company. and controllimg pany. ts Sumdteme Mian Test Holdings, Inc. a
company incorporsted in Jepn, Financial satensents for Sumitoma Mitsai Trust Holdings. Inc, are svailable 1o the public from

the Investor Relatsons Office, Financial Plasming Depariment, Samitoma Mitsai Trust Huldq:. Ime. L=dal, M:.l‘uurul.th Chiyoda-
ko, Tokoyo 100-8233, Japan. Copies of the anmeal repoet can be viewed or retrieved firom

Note § — Subsequent Events

Subsecuant 16 the sdstoment of finmaal postion dat e, there were no cvents which had m impsa on the consolidated and mdividual
Tknancisl sabensents of the Company.
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
6,905,864 763,650 5,628,385 622,387
2,811,372 310,882 2,851,607 315,331
23,377 2,585 70,125 7,754
9,740,613 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472
9,740,613 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472
120,087 13,279 148,200 16,388
82,785 9,154 79,840 8,829
1,913,594 211,605 1,643,547 181,743
2,116,466 234,039 1,871,587 206,960
480,000 2020 30

2020 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
7,144,148 790,000 6,198,530 685,433
7,624,148 843,078 6,678,530 738,512
9,740,614 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472

110.58
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
6,905,864 763,650 5,628,385 622,387
2,811,372 310,882 2,851,607 315,331
23,377 2,585 70,125 7,754
9,740,613 1,077,117 8,550,117 945,472
1 0.111 1 0.111
1 0.111 1 0.111
9,740,614 1,077,117 8,550,118 945,472
120,087 13,279 148,200 16,388
82,785 9,154 79,840 8,829
1,913,594 211,605 1,643,547 181,743
2,116,466 234,039 1,871,587 206,960
480,000 2020 30
2020 31
480,000 480,000 53,078 480,000 53,078
7,144,148 790,000 6,198,531 685,434
7,624,148 843,078 6,678,531 738,512
9,740,614 1,077,117 8,550,118 945,472
110.58
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2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
8,325,309 920,613 19,213,975 2,124,681
8,325,309 920,613 19,213,975 2,124,681
(488,340) (54,001) (1,183,017) (130, 818)
(6,365,716) (703,921) (15,585,538)  (1,723,449)
(9,058) (1,002) (15,764) (1,743)
(116,613) (12,895) (228,510) (25,269)
(6,979,727) (771,818) (17,012,829)  (1,881,279)
1,345,582 148,794 2,201,146 243,403
24,635 2,724 10,240 1,132
24,635 2,724 10,240 1,132
1,370,217 151,519 2,211,386 244,535
1,370,217 151,519 2,211,386 244,535
1,370,217 151,519 2,211,386 244,535

110.58
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2020 30

( ) C ) ( ) « ) ( ) « )
2019 31 480,000 53,078 3,987,145 440,898 4,467,145 493,977
2,211,386 244,535 2,211,386 244,535
2020 31 480,000 53,078 6,198,531 685,434 6,678,531 738,512
(424,600)  (46,952)  (424,600)  (46,952)
1,370,217 151,519 1,370,217 151,519
2020 30 480,000 53,078 7,144,148 790,000 7,624,148 843,078

110.58
2020 30
2020 30 2020 31

1,345,583 148,795 2,201,147 243,403

24,635 2,724 10,240 1,132

86,982 9,618 339,626 37,556

244,878 27,079 (861,555) (95,271)

1,702,078 188,216 1,689,458 186,820

(424,600) (46,952)
(424,600) (46,952)

1,277,478 141,264 1,689,458 186,820

5,628,386 622,387 3,938,928 435,567

6,905,864 763,650 5,628,386 622,387

110.58
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2020 30
309GT
EU
IFRS IFRS IFRIC
2020 31 IFRS
1ASB IFRIC EU
IFRS 1ASB
IFRIC
1ASB IFRS
2020 30 2020 31
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IFRS 15

IFRS 15

2018

IAS 18
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IFRS 9 1AS 39 1AS 39
IFRS 9 ) ) )
2018 IFRS 9
2018 IFRS 9
12
30
2020 30
2020 30 2020 31
100
2020 30 2020 31
2020 30 2020 31
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30
JPY GBP SGD
2020 30
2020 31 10
2020 30 2020 31
JPY 38,000 36,000
GBP 76,000 76,000
SGD 45,000 15,000
EUR 4,000 2,000
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2020 30 2020 30
2020 30 a
® ® ®
C O C O C O C O

702,454 140,109

4,112,350 1,099,130

643,733 231,193

796,864 434,732

110,316 8,430

6,365,717 1,913,594

2020 31 2020 31
2020 31 a
® ® ®
C O C O C O C O

2,660,526 261,856

8,822,358 991,951

2,185,998 245,353

1,801,198 137,386

115,458 7,001

15,585,538 1,643,547

(a
®
100-8233
IR

http://www_smth_jp/en/
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@
FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2021 36,936,427 40 8,443
1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2020 12 1,040,000,000 1,150 320
(©))
UFJ
2021 405
(O]
2021 173 63
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®
LLC
Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC)
2020 12 658,000,000 727 6,164
@
90
@
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®

CIMA

()

*
UFJ
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)
®
UFJ
JSDA
JSDA
)
©)
SEC
)
Q)
LLC
LLC
2002 11 2003 SEC
2016 LLC
LLC NB LLC NB
LLC LLC
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1.1 1993

1.2
1960

1.3
(a
1993
2020

(b
2020

1.4

1.5 2019 12 10,857
2,886
2020
2020
1.6
2.1

CIMA

CIMA
2.2

2.3

O

(a
(b
(c
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2.4 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
2.5 2020
15

CIMA
2.6

3.1

CIMA CIMA CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

3.2

CIMA

CIMA

3.3

(a 80,000 CIMA 100,000

(b

CIMA
3.4

2020 CIMA
CIMA

15

80,000 100,000
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4.1
CIMA
CIMA
4.2 CIMA
(a
(b
(c
«
(e
4.3
21
4.4 2006 12 27
CIMA
5.1
5.2
5.3
CIMA
5.4 CIMA

159/192

CIMA

CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
21
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
48
3.2
10



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

CIMA

(a
(b

(c
(d
(e

@i

(A
B 12

(c
CIMA

CIMA

6.1

(a

O

(c

«

CIMA

(A

17

36,585
8,536
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CIMA

CIMA

c

CIMA

24,390 30,488
8,536
42,682



6.2

6.3

(f
@

(h
@

(k

(m

(n

(vii

30

(a

®

(c

«

(f

(9

(h
@i

1925

150

20

(a

O

CIMA
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6.4

(c

(

(e

(f

(9

(h

@i

(k

(a

O

(c

@i

(vi

2016

50

162/192

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

«

(e 50

CIMA
7.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

7.2
7.1

500
7.3
CIMA CIMA CIMA
CIMA

7.4 7.3 10

7.5 7.3
CIMA
10
7.6
CIMA CIMA

7.7 CIMA 7.9

(a
(b

(c
«

(e
(f

7.8 7.7 CIMA CIMA

(a CIVA
® CIMA
(c
(d CIVA CIMA
7.9 7.7 CIMA
@a b)
a)

(b

(c
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@
(e
.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA

.11 CIMA CIMA

A2 7.9(d) 7.9(e)

CIMA CIMA
.13 7.9(e)
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Report of Independent Auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of
NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February
28, 2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as "financial statements".

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund as of February 28, 2021, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

July 6, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (* the company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related
notes including the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons
set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 02 April 2020.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company’ s financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the company’ s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the company will continue in
operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material

misstatements in the other information.
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Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

06 August 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid

Securities Fund

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “ Fund” ),
which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of investments, as of February
29, 2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows and the financial
highlights for the year then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are hereafter

collectively referred to as “ financial statements”

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Fund’ s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund’ s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund as of February 29, 2020, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

June 26, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LTD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory accounts of Nikko AM Global Cayman Ltd (the “ Company” ) for the year ended 31
March 2019 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and the Company Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and related notes including
the accounting policies in note 2. The non-statutory accounts have been prepared for the reasons set out in note
1.

In our opinion the non-statutory accounts:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’ s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (* ISAs (UK)” ) and the terms

of our engagement letter dated 3 May 2019. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and

appropriate basis for our opinion.

The impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit

Uncertainties related to the effects of Brexit are relevant to understanding our audit of the financial
statements. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of
these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the company’ s future prospects and
performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK, and at the date of this report its effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to that uncertainty when assessing the company’ s future
prospects and performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible
future implications for a company and this is particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory accounts on the going concern basis as they do not intend to
liquidate the group or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the group and the company’ s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts (“ the going concern period” ).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory accounts. In our
evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group’ s business model,
including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company’ s financial
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resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. We have nothing to report in these

respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference
to a material uncertainty in this auditor®s report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the director’ s report. Our opinion on
the non-statutory accounts does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory accounts or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified material
misstatements in the other information.

Directors” responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory accounts, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’ s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’ s report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory accounts.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC' s website at
ww . Frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company’ s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company’ s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.
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Michael McGarry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

2 August 2019
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